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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MRERERBREBEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BEREE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —+tF
RMB million RMB million
AREBER ARBBETT
Gross revenue (" 3,093.1 3,194.7
@i zs ()
Revenue 1,159.1 1,144.8
I &
EBITDA 285.4 (49.9)
BT E KA B
EBIT (Profit/(loss) from operations) 143.5 (191.0)
RERABE (&&af, (EBE))
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders 27.2 (352.3)
AARIBREEMEF, (EBE)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 1.2 cents 7 (15.2) cents 73
BREAEF, (EB)
At At
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
»® i
=B=+-—H =A=+—H
RMB million RMB million
AREBER ARBBETT
Net assets of the Group 4,385.6 4,317.3
AEEEEFE
NAV per ordinary share @ 3.85 yuan T 3.66 yuan JT
TmiREEFEY
Note: B aF

(1) Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the
sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
rental income from operating leases and management and
administrative service fee income charged to tenants.

(2) NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company per
ordinary share.

N
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBERERBREREEER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX EREBER
2018 2017
—EB-NF —E—tF
RMB RMB
AR®E T AR®BTT
Sales per ticket @ 1,251 1,185
XH5EE/Y
Annualized area efficiency (per m?)@ 36,300 32,600
FREAAFHR(BFERK)@
Notes: i &t
(1) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of (1) REHEBEEEBENSBEERINERS
transactions of department stores. B
(2) Annualized area efficiency represents annualized gross — (2) FE({LITFRIEFELBKREZHABTER
revenue per department store average operating area. B K EmE -
L SFEERERAA
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

IEHBERRE
For the year ended 31 March 2018 {2 —E— \F=H=+—HI-FE
(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB")) (U ARMKE ([AR¥K])Z7])

RESULTS
Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 December
BZE=-A=t-HLEE BZ+t-A=1+-HIEE
Fifteen months
ended
31 March
2018 2017 2016 2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bz
—E—REF
=B=1+—H
~g-0\§& —FT—+% AR —F-WF —FT-=%
ARETRE AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETH
Revenue W
- Continuing operations —FEREEE 1,159,060 1,144,753 1,603,739 1,364,421 1,493,498
- Discontinued operations —RIFREER - - - - -
1,159,060 1,144,753 1,603,739 1,364,421 1,493,498
Profit/(loss) attributable 5 5 FE A
to equity shareholders wFl/ (B18)
- Continuing operations —RELEXK 27,234 (352,337) 22,181 95,178 354,021
- Discontinued operations —RIFEEE - - - - -
27,234 (352,337) 22,181 95,178 354,021
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at 31 March As at 31 December
R=ZB=+-8 R+=B=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
~B-N\Nf  —Z2-tF —“T-xF _T-WF _—T-=F
ARETRE ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 7,279,287 7,104,859 7,238,892 6,716,628 5,606,846
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 1,200,911 1,245,330 1,587,518 1,480,097 1,583,542
DEDUCT: i
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE 1,932,084 1,769,159 2,634,471 2,437,698 1,595,737
NET CURRENT RBaEFE
LIABILITIES (731,173) (523,829)  (1,046,953) (957,601) (12,195)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERLDAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,548,114 6,581,030 6,191,939 5,759,027 5,594,651
DEDUCT: i
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE 2,162,515 2,263,725 1,563,530 1,288,935 1,467,317
NET ASSETS EEZE 4,385,599 4,317,305 4,628,409 4,470,092 4,127,334
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018
("the year").

BUSINESS REVIEW

The National Bureau of Statistics of China has published the
latest information of domestic economic situation recently.
Analyzing the situation by the major indicator of macro-
economic control, the overall situation of China’s economic
in the first quarter of 2018 is steady, representing a positive
economic situation of growing steadily, increasing employment
rate, stabilizing commodity prices and stabilizing international
balance of payment.

In the first quarter of 2018, China’s economy increased by
6.8%. This growth rate was in line with the fourth quarter
of last year, and the economic growth rate has been stable
at 6.7%-6.9% for 11 consecutive quarters. From the
perspective of demand structure, the basic role of consumption
continues to increase. The contribution rate of final consumer
expenditure to economic growth reached 77.8%, which was
higher than the contribution rate of total capital formation
by 46.5 percentage points. In the aspect of consumption, the
consumption of commodities is improving towards quality
consumption, and material consumption is changing to
become service consumption. These are all new changes in
the consumption sector. According to the monitoring data of
the China National Commercial Information Center, the retail
sales of the 50 key large-scale retail enterprises nationwide in
the first quarter of 2018 increased by 2.6% year-on-year, and
the growth rate was 0.6% over the same period of last year.
Among them, retail sales of 50 key large-scale retail enterprises
in the country rose by 3.8% year-on-year in March, which was
0.7 percentage points over the same month of last year.

The Xi‘an department store market also represented signs of
recovery. In the first quarter of 2018, there was a noticeable
increase in the number of stores with positive growth, and
the stores which were still in decline narrowed their degree in
reduction significantly.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

In 2017, the Company persisted in fine-quality positioning,
insisted on exclusive service and adhered to distinctive
operations, achieving initial results. First, the business
performance has stabilized and shows a trend of bottoming
out. Secondly, in order to achieve sustainable development, the
Company has implemented the “One Store, One Positioning”
strategy. The Company’s senior-level team has determined
the positioning of the stores of the Century Ginwa Xi‘an
Department Stores Business Sector, correspondingly make
the positioning of the stores more comprehensible and clear,
thereby reducing the internal competition situation. Thirdly, in
terms of management work, the Company adjusted its new
organizational structure, established a flat management plan,
simplified the work process and improved the timeliness of
work by 30% compared with the past. Human resources have
been made more dynamic through the work of “fixed position
and fixed salary”, activating the motivation of employees.
Fourthly, a solid step was taken in the expansion work. On 6
December 2017, the Company successfully rooted in Shaanxi
Chenggu County in the form of goodwill output and gradually
expanded the brand influence and scale of Century Ginwa. In
the fifth place, the ability to innovate has been continuously
improved; new technologies have been applied to expand
business areas, increasing office efficiency. The Company
adopted “Tangerine” paid control platform, corporate
“WeChat” management platform and the “Ding Talk” online
system. The rigors of these managements are all laying a solid
foundation for the retail transformation of the present and the
future of Century Ginwa.

G98 Omni-channel Intelligence Service Platform Project

G98 Omni-channel Intelligence Service Platform has already
finished the development of “Blue Ocean Project” in the
beginning of 2018, establishing the global shopping channel.
Currently, the platform has 12 overseas supply chains covering
5 major categories and involving 390 brands. This has
supplemented the number of brands and categories under
the offline store, broadened the cooperation channels, and
enhanced the competitive advantages of the same business
model in the Century Ginwa and the region.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Looking ahead, despite the adverse effects brought by various
domestic and foreign unfavorable economic factors, the
situation may not have significant difference in the short run.
However, regarding the acceleration of the pace of reform and
further adjustment of economic structure, China’s economy is
in progress while maintaining stability. In particular from 18 to
20 December 2017, the Central Economic Working Conference
repeatedly emphasizes the importance of consumption,
which will be beneficial to retail industry in the long run. It is
foreseen that the rapid urbanization will lead to the gradual
change of consumption ratios and structure, which further
stimulates the potential demand under consumption upgrade.
Subsequent to the vertical deepening of the national system
transformation and reform, the national policies will create
a macro-environment conducive to enterprise development.
The Company will also timely adjust its strategies and develop
future-proof policies for the updated situation.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, the existing
business will be integrated and optimized, while considering
the coverage of second-tier cities in Shaanxi to achieve healthy
growth of scale.

In the aspect of business diversification which increases
profit sources, the Company will further develop brand
agency business and introduce well-known domestic and
foreign brands to enter the northwest market, so as to
provide consumers with more quality choices and provide
operational management services to the franchise stores. By
reducing channels to directly provide goods to consumers,
the pattern of profit distribution will be changed. With our
strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency, good
financial performance and loyal customer base, we believe the
Company will maintain its leading position in the marketplace
among the industry and generate better returns for our
shareholders.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Wu Yijian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the performance of the Group
was illustrated as follows.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

Gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 decreased to RMB3,093.1 million as
compared to RMB3,194.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2017. The decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in concession sales during the year.

Annualized area efficiency (annualized gross revenue
per department store average operating area) for the
year ended 31 March 2018 was RMB36,300 per square
meter, as compared to RMB32,600 for the year ended
31 March 2017.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 slightly increased to RMB1,159.1 million as
compared to RMB1,144.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. It was because sales of goods increased by
11.3% compared to the same period last year.

The rental income and management and administrative
service fee income of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 were RMB127.7 million, as compared to
RMB148.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2017.
The decrease was mainly due to the closure of the
Xinjiang Youhao Store and the Shaanxi Tangrenjie Store
in August 2016 and January 2018 respectively.

The Group's operating profit for the year ended 31
March 2018 was RMB143.5 million as compared to the
operating loss of RMB191.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2017. Regardless of the impairment losses
on goodwill of RMB273.0 million recorded in last year,
the operating profit margin (profit from operation over
gross revenue) increased from 2.6% to 4.6%. Such
increase in profit margin was mainly due to saving of
operating costs from closure of the loss-making Xinjiang
Youhao Store and Shaanxi Tangrenjie Store.

EERENWR DM

0% R A
REBEFER AEBORRMTHR-

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

rEBEE_Z—N\F=ZA=1+—
HIEFEZzBEBERLEARKE
3,093,100,00070 MEZE —T—+
FZAZ+—BHLEFEAARK
3,194,700,0007C &k D == E R A F
NI EMEHEE R FTE -

HE-_TZ—/\F=ZBA=+—8IF
B zFEATFHR(FEARKZER
LBEEBSFHKERE) REF

K ARM36,300T MEE —F
—+tFZA=Z+—HLEFEAAR
#32,6007T °

rEBEE-_ZE—N\F=ZA=1+—
AEFEZREZEHM EAZTARE
1,159,100,0007 MEE - —+
FZA=Z+—HILFEAARKE
1,144,800,0007C > = A2 B R
EEREBEMEEIEMNIT1.3% °

HE-_Z—N\F=ZA=+—HLHF
ER 2&%@2%&@4&)\&@%&
BARE B A A AR 127,700,000
TomEE—E—+F=A=+—H
IFFE A AR #148,900,0007T ° &
LPEEZERRD IR =_Z—FNA
N —ZE—-N\F— AP EREM

JE BRI E AEPE -

REBHE-_T—)\F=ZA=+—
EﬁiEZ#«M}Eﬂ%/\E%
143,500,000 M&EZEZ T —+

F=ZA=+— Etﬁrz%%«%ﬁéﬁ
B AKR®191,000,0005T° & &
FFEHBZEEREBEAR
#£273,000,0007T © & & & F & (&
BRI AR H26%ERE
46%  ZnMEEATERARE
PABSE B 2 3B R TP s RBRFE

EAEFEMENE & & RAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DN

(vi) Net finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2018
were RMB97.0 million (2017: RMB136.9 million). The
change in net finance cost was mainly due to decrease
in average interest rate of bank loans and increase in
interest expenses capitalised.

(vii)  The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2018
and profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
were RMB23.6 million (loss for 2017: RMB349.9
million) and RMB27.2 million (loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company for 2017: RMB352.3
million) respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s consolidated net asset value
was RMB4,385.6 million (2017: RMB4,317.3 million). As at
31 March 2018, the Group had cash at bank and on hand
amounting to RMB614.7 million (2017: RMB512.7 million).
The current ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2018 was 0.62
(2017: 0.70). The gearing ratio, being bank and other loans
less cash at bank and on hand and short-term investments
divided by the total equity, as at 31 March 2018, was 0.36
(2017: 0.42).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to the year, the PRC retail industry will continue
to face challenges and be subject to internal and external
factors including macroeconomic fluctuation, government
policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail channels such as
e-commerce and rising costs.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working capital,
but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to subscribe
for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares which
reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially increased
shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial position.
As at the date of this annual report, Hony Capital held 28.07%
of the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue and was the
Company’s second largest shareholder.

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail

In 2018, the Company will focus on the concept of new
retail, to achieve “technology upgrades, service upgrades,
management upgrades”. In the specific business operations,
brand adjustment, membership recruitment, service
techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the Company
will abandon the original inertial thinking, and constantly
adopt new technologies and new methods to achieve
new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time, the
Company will implement planning and design in precise
marketing, management effectiveness, safety operations,
and other aspects one by one, and achieve the matching
of responsibilities and rights. Specific strategies include the
following five aspects:

Strategy |: Implement the plan. Thoroughly complete the
various business indicators of the year 2018. In the aspect of
brand adjustment, we must complete the brand adjustment
plan of 2018 according to the time node. It also clarifies the
overall operational planning work of 2019 and 2020.

Strategy Il: Actively expand. Fully launch the design and
planning work of Xi‘an’s global center project. At the same
time, on the basis of comprehensive investigations, we will
continue to explore projects in second-tier cities in the Shaanxi
province.

EERENWR DM
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Strategy lll: Capital protection. Strengthen receivables, use
new types of financing channels and tools, and optimize the
receivable turnover period.

Strategy IV: Driven innovation. Initiate the repetitive calculation
and development of the second phase of Blue Ocean; integrate
consumer finance and internet financial products; meanwhile
analyze the consumption behavior data of members, and
develop the mobile application of shopping guides.

Strategy V: Management effectiveness. Fully embody the
corporate culture effectiveness, performance management
effectiveness and communication mechanism efficiency, and
integrate the application of new management technologies.

The G98 project began various attempts in the online finance
sector at the end of 2017. It has cooperated with online
financial management companies and online banks, and
launched promotion and sales attempts in the Century Ginwa
WeChat public service account and APP in early 2018. The
online “gift card” function was jointly developed with Internet
Banking, and the Century Ginwa WeChat public service
account was deployed and operated. The online “phased
consumption” function was developed to enrich a variety of
ways and experiences of consumption scenarios. In 2018, the
G98 project has also successively contacted several well-known
enterprises in the domestic data service and data marketing
field to analyze the customers’ consumption and behavior
data, obtain analysis of the product category and brand sales
data, and formulate and promote promotional campaigns,
channel selection and effect evaluation. Analyze data from
other aspects, discuss in three major areas, and plan design.
In the future, we will provide digital tools for Century Ginwa
sales, brand adjustment and sales promotion activities, so that
Century Ginwa will truly understand consumers and satisfy
consumers.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Merger & Acquisition

On 4 December 2014, Century Ginwa Company Limited
("Ginwa Bell Tower”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the agreement with Shanghai Huade
Investment Company Limited (“Shanghai Huade"”) pursuant to
which Shanghai Huade agreed to procure Xi'an Yigao Property
Development Company Limited (the “Project Company”) to
develop the property as commercial part of project known
as “Xi'an Centre” in Xi'an Hi-tech Industries Development
Zone of Xi'an, the PRC, comprising the commercial part of
a gross floor area of approximately 69,061 square meters
and 457 car parking spaces (the “Property”) in accordance
with the requirements of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell
Tower agreed that upon the completion of the development
of the Property, it will purchase the Property for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,651,112,750. In this regard, the
Company had obtained the approval from the shareholders at
the special general meeting on 6 February 2015.

Blasting demolition of existing buildings of the project took
place on 15 November 2015. The substantial construction
of the project commenced in October 2016 and is originally
expected to be completed in 2018. The construction of the
Property has been delayed due to bad weather condition, in
particular strong haze environment, encountered around the
area of the Property. Since the project is located in the central
business district of Xi'an, it allows the Group to establish its
presence in such premium location and enhance the market
share and market influence.

The Group continues to explore merger and acquisition
opportunities and quality commercial properties across
northwest China to further increase its market share.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the reporting year (2017: HK$Nil).
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the number of the Group's staffs
was approximately 6,900 (2017: 8,100), including directly
employed approximately 1,800 (2017: 2,000) full time
employees, and the remaining were concession sales staffs
managed on behalf of the suppliers. Most of the employees
are employed in Mainland China. The directly employed
employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary increments
are assessed based on both individuals’ and the Group’s
performance, professional and working experience and by
reference to prevailing market practice and standards. Apart
from the general remuneration package, the Group also
granted share options and discretionary bonus to the eligible
staffs based on their performance and contribution to the
Group. The Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the key
factors to corporate success.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Termination of Rights Issue

Reference is made to the prospectuses of the Company dated
23 April 2018 and 8 May 2018 in relation to the Company’s
proposed issue by way of rights on the basis of one rights
share for every one share in issue (the “Rights Issue”).

However, as stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 May 2018, due to the low acceptance level of only
4.6373% and the substantive dilution to a large number of the
shareholders, the Company considered that it would not be in
the best interest of the shareholders to proceed with the Rights
Issue. Accordingly, the Company and RaffAello Securities (HK)
Ltd., as the underwriter, mutually agreed to terminate the
Rights Issue on 15 May 2018.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 May 2018.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Issue of Exchangeable Bonds

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 20 April 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 25
June 2018 in relation to the proposed issue of the three-year
private placement exchangeable bonds in the principal amount
of up to RMB200,000,000 (the “Exchangeable Bonds"”)
to be issued by Ginwa Bell Tower, a joint stock company
established in the PRC, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company owned as to 83.88% by the Company and the
disposal of up to 30,000,000 A-shares of & fE1> 2 (£ E)A
B AR E (Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.*), a company of
which A-shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600080) (the “A-Shares”) on the assumption
that the bondholders of the Exchangeable Bonds would
exchange in full for all the A-Shares used as collateral for the
Exchangeable Bonds. The issue of the Exchangeable Bonds
constitutes a major transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and is subject to the
requirements of reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval at a special general meeting to be held by the
Company on 11 July 2018 under the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 25 June 2018.
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Biographies of Directors

ESBER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian ("Mr. Wu")

Mr. Wu, aged 57, was appointed as Chairman of the Company
on 7 January 2011 and re-designated to an Executive Director
of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Wu currently holds
the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and he
was the executive director from January 2001 to May 2008,
the chairman from May 2003 to May 2008 and the non-
executive director of the Company from January 2011 to 18
February 2013 respectively.

Mr. Wu graduated in Huazhong Normal University with
a Master degree in Economic Management (Political
Economy). He was granted the national titles of “Ten Most
Outstanding Youth of China” in 1996, “Contribution
Award of International Excellent Entrepreneur” in 1997,
"Chinese Excellent Youth Entrepreneur” in 2002 and
"National Outstanding Builders of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics” in 2004. Mr. Wu is chairman of Ginwa
Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and the chairman of the board and the
president of Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”). He is also the vice-chairman of the China Civil
Chamber of Commerce, chairman of the Chairmen Board of
China Federation of Industrial Economics, vice-president of
the China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises, vice-
president of China International Chamber of Commerce for
the Private Sector, Secretary-general of Augmented Reality
Alliance China, vice-chairman of the China Red Ribbon
Foundation, expert committee member of The People’s
Government of Shaanxi Province Consult Committee, president
of Shaanxi Business Promotion Association, vice-president of
Shaanxi General Chamber of Commerce, honorable president
of Shaanxi Chamber of Commerce of Shanxi Merchant and
honorable president of Shenzhen M & A Association of Listed
Companies.

Mr. Wu is also the sole director of Maritime Century Limited
("MCL"), the substantial shareholder of the Company. MCL
is wholly and beneficially owned by Ginwa Investments.
Ginwa Investments is held as to 92% beneficially by Mr.
Wu. Therefore, Mr. Wu thru MCL was beneficially interested
in 336,166,156 ordinary shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO").

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan”)

Mr. Chan, aged 65, was re-designated to an Executive Director
and the Vice-chairman of the Company on 7 August 2015.
Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor degree in Social Science
(Economics) from The University of Western Ontario, Canada,
in 1978. He has over 20 years’ experience in marketing and
business development. He was an executive director of Zhi
Cheng Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”)
with Stock Code: 8130) from 8 April 2014 to 1 April 2015 and
Gold Tat Group International Limited (a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 8266) from 27
March 2003 to 13 October 2014.

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (“Mr. Kam”)

Mr. Kam, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 2 May 2017.
Mr. Kam holds a master’s degree in Business Administration
from The University of Manchester in the United Kingdom. He
is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA") and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Kam is a member of Standing Committee of the 5th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Futian
District, Shenzhen, a member of ACCA China Expert Forum,
and he is an expert juror of the First batch of Hong Kong
Expert Jurors of Qianhai Court. He was previously appointed as
Vice President of 7th Director Board of Shenzhen Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and was a member of
the Project Advisory Committee for the Authority of Qianhai
Shenzhen-Hongkong Modern Service Industry Cooperation
Zone and the 13th and 14th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Xi‘an.

Mr. Kam has 20 years’ experience in corporate, personal
and interbank business. He was Zone Manager — Corporate
Banking Division and General Manager of Shenzhen Branch of
The Bank of East Asia (China), Limited from July 2012 to March
2017 and Zone Manager (Western China) — Corporate Banking
Division and General Manager of Xi’an Branch of The Bank of
East Asia (China), Limited from November 2006 to June 2012.
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Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha")

Mr. Sha, aged 61, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 1 July 2007 and holds the directorship of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Sha is currently the
deputy financial controller of Ginwa Investments. He once
worked as the financial controller of Xi‘an Supply Station of
XiBei Electrical Engineering Company Limited and the financial
controller of Xi'an Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has over 20 years of working experience in commerce
and finance. Mr. Sha received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also holds a master degree in
business administration from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He was awarded China career manager in June 2003
and was appointed taxation practice review inspector by
Xi'an Tax Bureau in the PRC since 2014. He obtained a chief
financial officer qualification certificate in respect of business
administration position in 2007. In 2012, he was admitted
as an affiliate member of The Association of International
Accountants.

Mr. Chen Shuai ("Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 44, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He was also appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012. He
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.07%
of the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue, (ii)
the security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares held
by MCL under a share charge created in favour of Glory Keen
Holdings Limited, and (iii) 1,177,068,181 convertible preferred
shares of the Company. Mr. Chen directs city services, hotel
management, investments in financial services, culture and
media, consumer goods and retail and construction material
sectors of Hony Capital. Mr. Chen has extensive experience
in investment management, supplier management and retail
business.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 600649).
He was a non-executive director of China Glass Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock
Code: 3300) for the period from 2 January 2009 to 6 March
2014.

Mr. Cao Yonggang (“Mr. Cao")

Mr. Cao, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 17 May 2015. He was also appointed as a
member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company on 17 May 2015.

Mr. Cao joined Hony Capital in 2004 and is currently its
managing director. He is responsible for the management of
the risk management and compliance department, human
resources department, department of Hony Capital. As at the
date of this annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen
Holdings Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
28.07% of the number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue, (ii) the security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares
held by MCL under a share charge created in favour of Glory
Keen Holdings Limited, and (iii) 1,177,068,181 convertible
preferred shares of the Company.

Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Cao was an attorney at the
Jingtian & Gongcheng Law Firm. He is currently a supervisor
of Happigo Home Shopping Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 300413).
He was the chairman of supervisory board of Changsha
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science & Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with Stock Code: 157) for the period from 22 July 2010 to
29 June 2015. He received a bachelor of arts degree in civil
and commercial law from Tianjin Nankai University, a master
degree in international law from Peking University, a master of
laws degree in international law from the Erasmus University
in Rotterdam and a master of business administration degree
from the China Europe International Business School.
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Mr. Qu Jiagi (“Mr. Qu")

Mr. Qu, aged 59, was re-designated to a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Qu
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and was an Executive Director from 11 August 2007
to 18 February 2013. He is currently executive vice president
of Ginwa Investments. Mr. Qu worked with several other large
department stores and shopping malls in Xi’an, China.

Mr. Qu has over 30 years of working experience in department
store business. Mr. Qu received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also received training in High
Level Business Administration from The Open University
of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi Province
Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000 and
“China Professional Operational Management Master” in
2005. Mr. Qu is also a representative of the 13th and 14th
Xi'an City People’s Assembly.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, ACCA and The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 10 years of experience
in accounting and finance. At present, he practices public
accounting.

Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive director of China
Financial Services Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 605) from 28 May 2007 to
27 May 2016.
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Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Beijing Atman
Technology Limited and the chairman of the supervisory board
of New Star Energy Stock Company.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of Jilin
University.

Ms. Sun Zhili (“Ms. Sun”)

Ms. Sun, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Ms. Sun
holds a bachelor’s degree from Nanjing Normal University and
a master’s degree from the University of Houston. She has
over 20 years of working experience in corporate finance and
investment banking field.

Ms. Sun is currently a director of BNP Paribas Securities
(Asia) Limited. Prior to that she worked as a vice president
of Bosideng International Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 3998) focusing
on mergers and acquisitions and investor relationship
management, an executive director and chief financial officer
of China Mass Media Corporation (a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange), and in different positions in
investment banking in several banks in Hong Kong.

Ms. Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of
Huili Resources (Group) Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 1303) and Green International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
Stock Code: 2700).
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Dr. Cao Guoqi (“Dr. Cao")

Dr. Cao, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 November 2015.
Dr. Cao graduated from the Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics, the University of Hong Kong, and the
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences and holds a Ph.D.
degree in Economics. He has over 20 years of experience in
project financing and investment, finance, fund investment
and management, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
advisory.

Dr. Cao is the executive director and general manager
of Probest Limited and Master Energy Inc. He is also the
deputy president of the Asian Economics Research Institute
at the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, an
EMBA professor of Hunan University, a MBA supervisor at
the Advanced Institute of Finance of the Shanghai Jiaotong
University, and a research fellow at the Shanghai Institute of
Development Strategy. From April 2014, he takes the position
as the chairman of SBI China Capital Group. Currently, Dr.
Cao acts as an executive director of China Smartpay Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 8325) and an independent non-
executive director of Dongwu Cement International Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 695).

Dr. Cao was an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Co. Ltd. (a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with
Stock Code: 8205). He was a probationary economist in the
International Currency Department of the Economic and
Financial Affairs Councils, European Communities, as well
as a project coordinator of the World Bank. He co-founded
Shanghai Jingcheng Internet Consulting Co. Ltd. with
Shanghai Jiaotong University, and was elected as Chairman
and CEO.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental Protection

In order to promote corporate governance, drive
environmental protection proactively, facilitate relationships
among stakeholders and contribute to the society, the
management has established Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee (“ESG Committee”) to set targets,
policies, procedures and guidelines for ESG related matters
so as to promote the sustainable development of the
community where the Group’s business is operated. Five Task
Forces are set up under the ESG Committee. Members in the
Task Forces come from the elites of relevant departments
responsible for assisting the ESG Committee in promotion
of the corresponding ESG related matters, establishment
of key performance indicators and periodic effectiveness
assessment. ESG Committee is responsible to report to the
board of directors periodically the status of execution and
recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction
measures in offices, department stores and supermarkets to
reduce electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and
to avoid wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of
“Green management and balanced development”, the Group
will continue to review and monitor the implementation of each
measure, and optimize the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal business activities of the Group are the retail services
at its department stores. The risks associated include burglary,
fire, significant incidents, cash storage and in transit. The
Group has followed relevant laws and regulations to set up
security measures to lower the chance of these risks, to protect
the security of human lives and inventories and to minimize
any loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risks Management and
Fair Value” in note 28 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognize performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers come from buyers of department stores.
Through good standards of the look, appearance and
actions of employees, the Group creates a good service
model to customers. The Group not only devotes to
set up a consistent labelling system and clear pricing
system, but also endeavors to eradicate the selling of
fake and inferior quality products. The Group treasures
complaints and comments from customers. In order
to provide excellent customer services and to increase
market share and business expansion, the Group has set
up various channels to strengthen the communication
with customers, including customer satisfactory surveys,
customer opinion cards and website of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

3)

(4)

(5)

Goods Suppliers and Services Providers

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/services inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and services supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different department stores which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each department store of the Group
has taken steps to ensure that relevant local concerns,
customs and changes of laws or regulations have been
accounted for.

Shareholders

For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the
Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board of the
Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 and the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2018 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 98 to 106.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the KEBREBEE T —N\F —_F—tF=
two years ended 31 March 2018, 2017 and the fifteen months A=+—HIIFMAFERHEE - — X F
ended 31 March 2016 and the two years ended 31 December —A=t+—HLETEBRAREBEZE-ZT—M
2014, 2013 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 F . -2E—=—F+-_A=+—RBIFWMEF
December 2013, 2014 and as at 31 March 2016, 2017, 2018  EHGEA %@ ULRKERR —T—=4F

are set out on page 6. FZE-—NFF+_A=+—HEZZT—X
F B FR_FE-NEF=ZA=+—
BzEEREEMERNECH -
SHARE CAPITAL R 7

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during KA Z2-_ZE—NF=ZA=+—HIF
the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 27 to the  ERA v S ISEH NI B HREM 27 -
financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME B 17 828 B 5t &

On 17 October 2014, the Company adopted the Share RZZE—MWME+A++EH KATEMR
Award Scheme under which the shares of the Company D EEEIET Bl o Btk A A TR ([E2EN AR
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to any member of ) AR BRI 2 B &S
management and employee (either full time or part time) ARBEFR T AEETMAKE QG ZE
of any member of the Group, Directors (including executive MEEEKRENES (2B ERE) =%
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non- (BIERITES - IFRITES LB IFHTT
executive Directors), any suppliers, customers, shareholders, BF) AEEITMAKE QARTEZ [
advisers (professional or otherwise), joint venture and service HEE B IR -EM (BREEMEE
providers to any member of the Group from time to time (the ) B TENRBEEER ([EE2
“Selected Participants”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme 2 |) o &5 S2E)EH I AN B BB A7 IR 3E
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The BITRIESEE] BAIFTEI B B B
Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date +F (2= -_mWF+A+B)EBK-
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 16 October 2024.

The maximum aggregate nominal value of the Awarded Shares  RIEAR D #EENzT 2IM T L2 ER 2 IE I
which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the HREERG  2RMEE R TREBBA
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1 per cent of the issued RAINEBEEEBB 2 EBITRANE S
share capital of the Company at the date of such award. 2o

When a Selected Participant has satisfied all vesting conditions HERB2NEFEARAEETeMEE A
specified by the Board of the Company at the time of making RE IS ENRS I B A 2 28R B IR (F r] JEHY
the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company EREENARRIRGD  SFEABAMZEL
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer 2NEEEERBEEN D - A RN
the relevant Awarded Shares to that participant. The Selected EEERERTERRESE PR RERBE
Participant however is not entitled to receive any income EhIx D By Ug A 3 R a0 f% B o

or distribution such as dividend derived from the unvested

Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has HEARFEHRHE XA EBBXTALE
purchased 3,070,000 shares of the Company through the Bt X Pz ANF T I5EE A T 3,070,000 AR A
trustee in the open market on the Stock Exchange for the AIRH AR D EBEET 8 AAFRNER
purpose of Share Award Scheme and no share was granted by IR A 1 22 B &t 81 1% 1 o

the Company under Share Award Scheme.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus, subject to
equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to RMB995,255,000
(2017: RMB995,255,000) were available for distribution to the
Company'’s shareholders. In addition, the share premium of the
Company in the amount of approximately RMB1,136,595,000
(2017: RMB1,133,854,000) may be distributed in form of fully
paid bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2018 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang
Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Sun Zhili

Dr. Cao Guoqi

In accordance with Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company, Mr.
Sha Yingjie and Mr. Qu Jiagi will retire from the office of
directorship by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai who had served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years will
be subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and Dr.
Cao Guogi, and considers them to be independent for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The Company considers that each of
such Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent
from the Group based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 18 to 24.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined
in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements and
independent shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been
made and obtained by the Company in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions

On 13 February 2015, the Company’s three subsidiaries,
as lessors, entered into tenancy agreements (the “Tenancy
Agreements”) with Xi'an Century Ginwa Epin Life Supermarket
Company Limited (“Xi‘an Epin”), as tenant, in respect of
renting at Bell Tower Store, Hi-Tech Store and Nandajie Store
for operations of supermarket business for a period of three
years commencing from 16 February 2015, at annual rental
of RMB5.6 million, RMB0.8 million and RMBO0.3 million
respectively. Xi‘an Epin terminated the Tenancy Agreement for
Nandajie Store in December 2015. Renting to Xi‘an Epin for
operation of supermarket business in the Group’s department
stores can enhance the product mix. As at the date of the
Tenancy Agreements, Xi‘an Epin was wholly-owned by Ginwa
Investments, which was in turn beneficially owned as to 92%
by Mr. Wu Yijian, an Executive Director and Chairman of
the Company, and was therefore a connected person of the
Company. The transactions under the Tenancy Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

EERESEZRBEN (A

REZHBEEREEEMKE AR
SEAAR-—FARNEE OXERBER
SN T AR I Z IRFE B 4T

EERTEBREHATZHE

AEBEENRIABRRFALZMNEFE
N H KM A8 -

BEXS
BE_Z-N\F=A=+—HILFE &
EHRAIEAAENRE FTHEEAL
(R EMRAER) BAKEHETH FHX
SRBAI R/ SFEET MARAR
Rz EHAR R REELABR LS NES
B R R E (INFE) o

FERERS

RIE—RAF-_A+=H ARBEIZ=
XM BAREATEA  EEBARLHL
CEEmEEFRAMRERAR ([AXEM])
NEERE SV EREAHEERKL
gRAmBE izt EERR ([SHwlEE
WEl) B E—RFE-A+ BT A
=% %5 4&AR5600,0007T"
A R #800,0007T & A R #300,0007T ° 78
TERR_Z—AF+_AKRERERE
BEZSHHERZ AESEEEE SR
AL E i B ERB AR T 5 & & 0] 12 7 E @
HE N ERERN ALXERAS
EREZEHR MR EBREARFZ
PITEEHRIRR —BAEAEETEFER%
D MALERARNARZEEALT 5
HHEBRB T 2R IERRRE 2FE
BER S -

HESEHEERERLF
=Bt -N\FER

31

-




N

2

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Subsequent to the entering into of the Tenancy Agreements,
Ginwa Investments transferred all its equity interests in Xi'an
Epin to an independent third party of the Group. Following the
aforesaid transfer, Xi'an Epin ceased to be a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As a
result of which, the Tenancy Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder ceased to constitute as continuing
connected transactions for the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 31 to the financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed,
except for those described above in the paragraphs headed
“Continuing connected transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18

REXZ (&)

REIGHHEERRR SEREDHH
RAREmEHBREEETAEEZ —
BEUE=TT N EAMEER - RIBELETR
AFV4AE BALRERETERARNRRZH
BALT R RIBEETARR S E R
EMHEBBTRETZRXSTHBRART
ZRERER G-

ZEFEERBEEALTRRZHNEHNCRY %R
KM ENFTE—FTRE TARAEELZ
ERXB - ZFREALRZRBBAR
BETRANBTRENBELI S LN ER
BRE DRI [FERERS ] WK
& (MERZFEETRIE LWRRIE14AE
F) 7 B8 25K BR S



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/
or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of ordinary share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of director Nature of interests shares held Company

EEAF

FiFEe 1T ERTEER

EsnE EEME EERHE RAEABOEIL

Mr. Wu Yijian Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 29.24%
R—BEYE REEHEE B R

Mr. Sha Yingjie Personal interests 1,551,500 0.13%

DENFTAE (EPN-F

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company

In accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15
February 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the eligible person of
the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise
of options for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible person for their contribution
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 15 February 2011 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended according to the Share Option
Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(i)  a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person under the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of
the Company subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme of the
Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders (as such terms as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive directors
or shareholders of the Company as the case may be.
Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant; and
(i) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to
Share Option Scheme adjustments).

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 74,205,000, representing 6.45% of the issued share
capital of the Company. For the year ended 31 March
2018, 44,000,000 share options were granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme. Set out below
are the details of movements in the outstanding share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme for the

EERFRETHRAEREQFR
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ZEBRARERMAR BORERR
HAMAAEERA 2 FHRTE
(RBBRETEFELRRE) -

HEAFHRAE RIEBRETS
A 31T 2 f% (0 42 £ /4& 74,205,000
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year ended 31 March 2018: FERR R B 15 -
Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HK§) exercise period 2017 the year the year the year 2018
R-g-N%F
Rog-tF =A
4 mA-H ERgl/ =t-H
RRALE REBE (B1)  BRRTES HATE AR iR X% HATE
Mr. Wu Yijian 200ct2011 1.9 20 0ct 2011 1o 3,750,000 - - 3,750,000 -
190ct 2017
-8Rk It S I i ik
tA=tH “2-tETRTAER
30 May 2013 1.76 30 May 2013 to 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000
29 May 2019
Z3-cE S e =
BA=TH ZE-NERAZTAR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)
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(b) ZLATRBREZRAE (F)

Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HKS) exercise period 2017 the year the year the year 2018
R-E-NF
Ro®-t§ =B
%@ BA-H ERRe/ =t-8
ARALS RLEH (B7) BERGEH BATE AR ERfTE X% BALTE
Mr. Qu Jiaqi 200ct 2011 196 20 0ct 2011 1o 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 -
19 Oct 2017
BREEE I I i i
tA=tA “E-tEtATAR
28 May 2013 173 28 May 2013 1o 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
27 May 2019
-5 ZE-ZERACZTN\BE
EA-T/R ZE-NERAZTLR
Mr. Sha Yingjie 200ct 2011 196 20 0ct 2011 1o 1,875,000 - - 1,875,000 -
19 0ct 2017
DEATE I I i i
+A=tA “E—tEtATAR
28 May2013 173 28 May 2013 10 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
27 May 2019
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the

Company (continued)

EERIETRABREATR
B RREGORES 2 EE A

(b) ZFLARBREZRRE (F)

Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HK§) exercise period 2017 the year the year the year 2018
RZ2-N%
RIB-tF =
i@ mA-A ERRY/ =+-8
REALS REBE (B1) BRRTEH GESHEA ERRH Enfi X% GESHE
Other employees of 20 Oct 2011 19 20 0ct 2011 t0 19 Oct 2017 26,150,000 - - 26,150,000 -
the Group
(in aggregate)
AEEAMEE _FF T tACTRE
(R%) +A=1H “EtETATAA
8May2013 1713 28 May 2013 t0 27 May 2019 43,455,000 - - 9,900,000 33,555,000
it S “B-ZERACTN\RE
TAZTNR “T-NERAZTER
Other eligible WSep 2017 032 27 Sep 2017 to 26 Sep 2019 - 44,000,000 11,000,000 - 33,000,000
persons
HeERAL  ZB-tE “B-tENRCTHRE
NEZtEE “ENENAZTAR
Total 3t 85,380,000 44,000,000 11,000,000 44,175,000 74,205,000

N
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the Company
(continued)

a. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 20 October 2011 was
HK$1.84 (Adjusted).

b. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 28 May 2013 was HK$1.78.

C. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 30 May 2013 was HK$1.73.

d. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 27 September 2017 was
HK$0.26.

(Adjusted) Price is adjusted due to the 4 to 1 share
consolidation with effect from 13 December
2012.

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2018,
the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being interests of
5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors or chief executives of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FTERR (&)
Long position/short position in the shares of the (a) ZAATRGBZRAE EA&
Company

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company

N

FrsE BT BRATEER

ey RE/ER REtE LERYA REzBHBA L

Maritime Century Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
ke NAER (Hizt1)

Ginwa Investments Holding Group ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%

Ltd.

SRREBREEFRAA K& RRBHZERAER (Hit1)

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
RERRAERAT RE NAER (Hi2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
kB RRBHZERAER (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
RE RE BRI AR R AR (Hizt2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
kB RRBHZERAER (Hit2)

Hony Group Management Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
RE REBHEE R AR (Hizt2)

Hony Managing Partners Limited Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
kB REBHZERAER (Hit2)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
RE REBHZERARR (Hie2)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
BeRE K& RREBHZERAER (Hit2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) TERR (&)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b) RAELATREITEIREZHEBR
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as BeRE ER(ERERHFRY
defined in Part XV of the SFO) B RBIFEXVER)

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

BALT

e g BRTEER

RRER RE/ER BENE EERYE REzBHBA L

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
REARERAT RkE NAER (Ht3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHEERAER (Kiit3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP.  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHEERAER (Krit3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHEERAER (Krit3)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHEERAER (Kiit3)

Hony Managing Partners Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHEERAER (Kiit3)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHEERAER (Krit3)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%

o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1)

MCL held 336,166,156 Shares. Ginwa Investments
holds the entire issued share capital of MCL. Mr. Wu
Yijian beneficially owns 92% equity interests in Ginwa
Investments. As such, Mr. Wu Yijian was deemed to
be interested in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of his
shareholding in MCL.

The long position of 658,893,428 Shares represents (i)
the 322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen”); and (ii) the security interest
held by Glory Keen over the 336,166,156 Shares
held by MCL under share charge. Hony Capital Fund
2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital of
Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Group Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P.. Hony Managing Partners Limited owns 80%
equity interests in Hony Group Management Limited.
Hony Managing Partners Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr.
Zhao John Huan held 49% of the issued share capital
of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the
above-mentioned parties is therefore deemed to be
interested in the interest held by Glory Keen.

The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as at
31 March 2018, had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2018, director of the Company had the
following interests in business which competed or were likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business:

Name of director Name of company

Nature of business

TERR (&)
BEXHBEEEN R -B—\F= A
S+—B BARNERREIBEARAR
B0 - 554 £ 0] A 50 £ fa] A% 45 o 4 BB A
13 7R A E (A 25 o B MR 4 5 1 4
EEHIEXVER SR 35 B2 BE T AA
ARHE  HEE KB RA N AR T
FEAE B T TR A SR B (A LA B A )
ZREAERE FERIBRAEEZ5%
A L3 -

EERGFRER RS
RZE—-NF=A=+—H ARQRFESE

BE T BARE XK E & KB R BN
FHA BB FHNRBROER

Nature of interests

EsnE NEERE FBMHE EEMEE

Mr. Wu Yijian Ginwa Investments Project investment, entity 92% of the equity
investment, real estate interest in Ginwa
development, property sales, Investments
leasing and agency services,
department store and
supermarket operations

R—BELE TERE EARE GXRERE L% RILEREZ92%KE
WEHE HERERS -
REBEEGRBERTIS

Note: K&t

Although Mr. Wu Yijian has competing interests in Ginwa Investments
by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors consider that such
competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the Group as
a whole. Furthermore Mr. Wu Yijian will fulfill his fiduciary duties in
order to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the Shareholders
and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable
of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended
31 March 2018. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 27 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no contract concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2018.
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

On 13 April 2017, Century Ginwa Urumgqi Shopping Mall
Company Limited (“Century Ginwa Urumgi”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, lodged an appeal application (the
“Appeal Application”) to the Supreme People’s Court of the
PRC disputing the default payment of RMB20 million arising
from the legal proceedings with its landlord and suppliers
involving claims against Century Ginwa Urumgi, which has
been settled and fully paid in March 2017. On 8 September
2017, Century Ginwa Urumgi made an application to the
Supreme People’s Court of the PRC to withdraw the Appeal
Application. The withdrawal of the Appeal Application was
granted by the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC on 28
September 2017. Save as otherwise, none of the members of
the Group was engaged in any litigation, arbitration or claim
of material importance and no litigation, arbitration or claim of
material importance was known to the directors to be pending
or threatened by or against any member of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2018 and as at the date of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s shares in the market as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Kam Hou Yin, John
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices, risk management and internal control policy and
procedures from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment
to excellence in corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules except for certain deviations. The corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018 is stated as follows:

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the directors (Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive) are subject to retirement at least
once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company's corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG
Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the year ended 31 March 2018.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. He
should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the
Board and the chairmen of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee were not able to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18 September
2017 due to other important business engagement. They had
delegated the Chief Executive Officer to chair and be available
to answer questions at the annual general meeting.
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CG Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. During the year ended 31 March
2018, not all Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors were able to attend the general meeting of
the Company due to their other business commitments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2018 and the date of this annual report, the
Board is comprised of four Executive Directors, three Non-
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The followings are the members of the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang

Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng

Ms. Sun Zhili

Dr. Cao Guoqi

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each Executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to
CG Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly
and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximate intervals. During the year ended 31 March
2018, the Board met regularly and frequently for the review
and approval on the business of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’ attendance of the
Board and the shareholders’ meetings held for the year ended
31 March 2018 are set out as follows:

Name of Director
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Name of Director

EEMS

Board
meetings AGM & SGM
BRRBF
XER

Exged RRBAKAE

Non-Executive Directors
FHITEE
Mr. Chen Shuai
PR A 4 A
Mr. Cao Yonggang
RN P
Mr. Qu Jiaqgi
HREEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHITEF
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Cifeisa
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Brie & 5t &
Ms. Sun Zhili
BB L
Dr. Cao Guoqi
EEBE L

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.
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The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

management of the overall business and strategic
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

—  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company to ensure that the
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable
request, seek independent professional advice under
appropriate circumstance at the Company's expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision; in
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to
the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results
and management to ensure that all interests of shareholders
are taken into account, and the interests of the Company and
its shareholders are protected.
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The Board has four independent non-executive Directors,
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has appointed four independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refresh their knowledge and
skills during the year ended 31 March 2018 for ensuring their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Such
professional development was completed by way of attending
briefings, conference, courses, forum and seminars, teaching,
self-reading and participating in business-related researches
which are relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors) has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date, renewable
automatically by three years on the expiry of such term and
every successive period of three years thereafter, subject to
the relevant provisions under the Company’s amended and
restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-third of all the
Directors (i.e. both Executive and Non-executive Directors
are included) to retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter and Mr. Kam
Hou Yin, John have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a specific term, and all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Nomination Committee
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authorities delegated to them by the Board, are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance
under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors: Ms. Sun Zhili, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
and Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, and two Non-executive Director,
Mr. Chen Shuai and Mr. Cao Yonggang. Ms. Sun Zhili is the
chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control system, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their
approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and recommended the appointment of the external
auditor. Also, the Audit Committee together with management
and independent auditors have reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited results for the year ended
31 March 2018 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2017 prior to their approval by
the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, two meetings were HE-_ZT—N\F=H 7+—E|Jt¢ﬁ %
held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record of each HZEEB@EBITTRMACE BHREES
member of the Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit KENEZEZEeSmmMERBLitEs ZZD
Committee is set out below: T:
Attendance/
Number of
Audit
Committee
Name of Director meetings
HE/ B
ZE®
EspA BEHE
Ms. Sun Zhili 172
BBt
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
BRED % 4
Mr. Cao Yonggang 0/2
ERd b
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 2/2
BEE %L
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/2
B & 5t &

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March 2018.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr.
Ruan Xiaofeng, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Sun Zhili,
and one Non-executive Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed the Group’'s remuneration policy and
reviewed the remuneration package of the Executive Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 March 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, one meeting was held
by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance record of
each member of the Remuneration Committee at the meeting
of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:

TRELAHRE

BHE_ZT-N\F=ZA=1+T—"HILFE %
ME 8 &2 25 A & B 1 5 B ECR K =B
BHE T N\F=A=1+—HIEFEHIT
EEREREEBNTMTE-

HE-_Z—N\F=ZR=+—HLEFE #
MEEERTT - RER -FHEZESR
ERFMEE S HN L F L EE I
T

Attendance/

Number of

Remuneration

Committee

Name of Director meeting

HE 5

ZE®g

Espns 23¥A

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 17
Bribelé 5t 4

Mr. Chen Shuai 1”7

BRED % 4

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 1”7
BEE LT

Ms. Sun Zhili 01
BRBLL

HESTEHEERERAT

=Bt -N\FER
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of two Non-
executive Directors: Mr. Chen Shuai and Mr. Cao Yonggang
and four Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang
Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and Dr. Cao
Guogi. Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the board’s structure, size and
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills,
independence and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence submitted by Independent Non-
executive Directors and assessed their independence. Also,
the Nomination Committee will also give consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, and the Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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TRERMRSE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, one meeting was held BE-ZT—N\E=-A=1T—HBLFE &
by the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of each  ZZEEBGHRITT —REH - ELEEER
member of the Nomination Committee at the meeting of the KENEREZECS M EFCiks s
Nomination Committee is set out below: Nk
Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Name of Director meeting
HE/’BA
ZE®
BEspns =f1
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 1”7
wEfE kL
Mr. Chen Shuai 7
PRED S &
Mr. Cao Yonggang 01
R bt
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 171
Bribzlé 5t 4
Ms. Sun Zhili 01
BEBX L
Dr. Cao Guogqi 1”7
EEEE L
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION R AN =

The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor
during the year ended 31 March 2018. The external auditor
is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except for
specific approved items, such as review of interim results of
the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external auditor’s
statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approves its
fees. A remuneration of RMB3,800,000 was paid/payable to
KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review of interim
results services in the year ended 31 March 2018.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company. As at 31 March 2018, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company's external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wu Yip Kai has been informed of the requirement of the
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by
establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while
the Board oversees management in performing its duties on
an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives;

Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly;
and

(ii) Evaluation:

(iii) Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year
ended 31 March 2018, no significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Group has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

(i) Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for
carrying out internal control across
the Group;

A dynamic and iterative process
for identifying and analyzing risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed;

(ii) Risk Assessment:

Action established by policies
and procedures to help ensure
that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out;

(iii) Control Activities:
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i

(iv) Information and

(v) Monitoring:

XERAWME

Internal and external communication
to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-
to-day controls; and

Communication:

Ongoing and separate evaluations
to ascertain whether each component
of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of disclosure requirements in relation to the
Group, which include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations; and

The Executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the
year ended 31 March 2018, no significant control deficiency
was identified.
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Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to carry out the Internal Audit (“IA")
functions of the Group. The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted semi-
annually. Several areas have been considered during the
Board’s reviews, which include but are not limited to (i) the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last semi-annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment, and (ii)
the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
IA functions and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March
2018.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group’s latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’'s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’s website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The purpose of this Environmental, Social and
Governance (hereinafter called “ESG") Report is not
only to communicate the sustainability strategies,
management approaches and performances of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or “we") with
the stakeholders, but also strengthen the Group’s
understanding towards their ongoing activities in
sustainable development of the society and the
environment as a whole. This ESG Report summarizes
the efforts and achievements made by the Group
in corporate social responsibility and sustainable
development.

The Group hopes to develop its business objectives
and creates shareholder/investor value, while at the
same time protects the ecological environment by
fully utilizing resources and minimizing the emission
of pollutants during operation. As a responsible and
visionary corporate citizen, we have to balance the
relationship between operations and environment
by continuously optimizing operations management,
business strategies and policies on environmental
protection, training and development, and community
investment; and contribute towards the sustainable
development of the globe, human being and our
business.

Scope and Period of Reporting

The ESG Report covers the Group's main business in
operating department stores, shopping centers and
supermarkets in the Mainland China and presents
the Group’s strategic approach to sustainability and
performance in the environmental and social aspects of
the above business. A summary of the environmental
indicators and the performance data are listed out
at the “Environmental Performance Data Summary”.
The reporting period is for the financial year ended 31
March 2018.
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Reporting Guidelines

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with
the updated Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group always adheres to the management
philosophy of sustainable development. With the
global increasingly stringent environmental protection
regulations, we devote to enhance the environmental
performance of our business. We have formally
started collecting the environmental data on energy
conservation and emission reduction in 2015. Thorough
understanding of the impact of our business operations
and projects development on the environment can
effectively avoid or reduce the risks that our business
activities would adversely affecting the environment.
We always advocate that protecting the environment
is everyone’s responsibility, hoping everybody can start
from something small and little; like “taking ONE
step ahead each time”; “making ONE small change”;
“clinging ONE belief” so that gradually we can create
a fresh world together. Since 2013, we have been
spreading the “Power of One” message to outsiders,
promoting the “Protect the blue sky” concept through
organizing a variety of activities, appealing for reducing
pollution to the environment, and drawing support and
attention from the community. We also hope that the
environmental protection can be turned into a more
meaningful and powerful journey. We have designated
April 2017 as the month for a series of activities on
environmental protection with an aim to arouse public
awareness as to the relationship between environmental
issues and our health. We encourage everyone to
start from changing one-self like “Using handkerchief
instead of tissues” to reduce cutting trees and carbon
emissions, and to enrich our city with oxygen. We hope
that everyone can actively participate in the activities
and take action to care for the environment, and make
contributions for the betterment of the Earth.
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1.

Management of Emissions

In the Group’s business activities, energy
consumption accounts for a large part of
greenhouse gas emissions. In order to realize
the goal of energy conservation and emission
reduction, and to align with the “green
operation, balanced development” belief,
we promote green operations in our offices,
department stores, shopping centres and
supermarkets through setting an example by
raising our staffs’ awareness of energy-saving;
actively promoting the belief of “To save and
conserve energy, to lead a low-carbon living”.
In order to strengthen the group’s energy
conservation management, waste management,
and waste recycling and categorization, we
set up an energy conservation project team to
optimize the resources in carrying out the energy
conservation and emission reduction policies
and to promote green operation management in
multiple aspects to fulfill the expectation of our
stakeholders in environmental protection and to
sustain our environmental performance.

Our wastes are mainly divided into two
categories: recyclable and non-recyclable. They
are mainly come from the product packaging
materials, kitchen wastes, slow-moving goods
and office daily wastes. Recyclable wastes are
gathered at the collection station and to be
handled by qualified recyclers. Reusable slow-
moving consumable goods are donated to the
non-government bodies for distribution to the
needy. During the reporting period, we did not
produce any hazardous wastes.
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Management of Resources Utilization

Since the implementation of strict ESG data
control and management in 2016, we always
pay attention to the energy consumption and
reducing energy wastage in our operation and
business activities. We realize that at the same
time as we conduct our business activities, we
also need to take up the responsibility to preserve
our environment; by recognizing, monitoring and
reducing the impact from our operation to the
environment. In order to comply with the laws,
regulations and policies on resource conservation,
we have set up various resource saving measures
at the shopping malls, supermarkets and
offices; putting efforts on raising each staff's
awareness of energy conservation; demanding
each department to maximize the resources
utilization effectiveness and avoiding wastage;
and strengthening resources recycling for the
long term and sustainable development.

Conservation of Energy

Energy-saving slogans and labels are posted
in business places (such as department stores
and shopping mall) and offices to encourage
our employees to change their habit in using
electrical devices. Besides, we have established a
number of energy-saving measures, including the
use of energy-saving lamps which consumes less
electricity but brighter and can last for a longer
time; better use of natural light; switching off the
electrical appliances not in use, such as electrical
lights, computers, printers, photocopiers,
scanners, televisions, air-conditioners, etc. Air
conditioning is used by reference to the seasonal
and temperature change. It is strictly prohibited
to open the doors and windows while the air
conditioning is turned on. The air conditioners
must be cleaned regularly to maintain it at good
conditions.
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Besides, we adopt a variety of new technologies
to make more efficient use of electricity. During
the reporting year, we use the frequency
conversion control technology to transform
circulating pumps of the central air conditioning
plant so that the system can automatically control
the frequency as the surrounding temperature
changes and reduce energy consumption. We
have also automated the electrical appliances on/
off switching process for some of our malls and
shopping centers. Such change has strengthened
the control in the entire workflow. Besides, we
have also set timer and temperature for the
blower so as to control the on/off of the device
automatically; use LED lamps to intelligently
adjusting the luminosity; and as a whole saved a
lot of electricity.

During the reporting period, the Group’s business
consumed approximately 43.54 million kilowatt
hours of electricity, approximately 11 tonnes
of diesel oil and approximately 6 tonnes of
gasoline. With reference to the guidelines of
the Greenhouse Gas Protocol and the regional
emission factors, greenhouse gas emissions are
calculated from the above-mentioned data. In
terms of total carbon dioxide emission, Scope 1
emissions are approximately 58 tonnes and Scope
2 emissions are approximately 40,573 tonnes.

Conservation of Water

Water conservation should start from daily life. In
order to raise our staff's awareness, we have set
up a number of control measures. Drinking water
cannot be used in other way. Water flow from
tap is controlled at low level. Water tap should be
turned off after use. Water facilities are regularly
inspected to keep them in good condition and
to avoid leakage resulting in wastage of water. If
there is abnormality, they are repaired or replaced
immediately. Complete inspection records are
maintained. During the reporting period, the
Group’s business consumed approximately
352,810 tonnes of water.
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Conservation of Paper

We promote saving papers and avoid wastage
through unified purchasing; distribute files in
electronic format to minimize photocopying and
printing; fully utilize paper by reusing single-
sided papers, and collecting double-sided printed
papers to qualified recycler for handling. During
the reporting period, the Group’s business
consumed approximately 8 tonnes of paper.

Plastic Bags Management

In order to let everyone realize the importance
of using less plastic bags, we distributed only
a limited number of environmental friendly
shopping bags during the “Environmental
Protection Month"” promotional activities. This is
to encourage people to bring their own shopping
bags and reduce using plastic bags. We strictly
prohibit supermarkets distributing plastic bags for
free and to comply with the requirement under
the plastic bag levy system.

Management of Office Supplies Utilization

Office supplies are procured and distributed
centrally by the administrative department; and
are properly stored so as to reduce the chance of
damages and wastage. Departments set up their
own office supplies usage plans, and to submit
requisition requests according to the stated
procedures. All such requisition records should be
properly maintained.

Compliance

During the reporting period, there were no
confirmed non-compliance incidents in relation to
environmental protection that have a significant
impact on the Group.
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3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has strived to care for and to protect
the nature, everyone should take part in it and
hope to create a beautiful world together. In
order to let employees know the importance
of our environmental impact, we continue to
adopt various policies, measures, and actions in
reducing carbon footprint, and to minimize the
impact to the environment from daily lives and
business activities (Please refer to “Management
of Emissions” and “Management of Resources
Utilization” above for details). We hope that
every staff can start from themselves, convey
the message of protecting the environment to
their families, friends and business partners; to
build more powerful cohesion, and in alleviating
climate change together.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

Employees are our valuable assets and the key driver
for the Group’s sustainable and long-term business
development. We devote to create a non-discrimination,
equal, harmonious and safe workplace; build up a
mutual-respect and good relationship with our people;
encourage our employees to be innovative, flexible
and committed when dealing with our customers
and providing high quality products and services.
To accomplish this target, we offer opportunities of
advancement to attract, develop, retain and reward our
talented staff; providing commensurate remuneration,
personal growth and career development training;
together with other fringe benefits, such as retirement
benefits, vacation and other welfares. Besides, we
promote work-life balance and focus on staff physical
and mental health; we organize activities to enrich their
leisure time and, at the same time, to promote team
cohesion.
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Talent Selection

We are committed to build a fair, tolerant, diversified
and equal corporate culture; to ensure that all
employees are getting mutual respect, able to learn
from each other, continue improving under benign
competitive atmosphere. In order to provide equal
opportunities and remuneration to all interested
candidates, we mainly make use of the recruitment
portals on the web, social recruitment, campus
recruitment and internal referrals. We insist to fairly
select the most appropriate candidate; and they are
not discriminated against because of their nationality,
gender, age, geographical, religious beliefs and
other factors. We consider only their job experience,
qualification requirement and ability; and arrange job
assignment accordingly. We have hired disabled person
and evidenced that we follow the fair principle in staff
recruitment. Our employees are considerate, supportive
and tolerate; who help us developing our business
steadily and have a positive impact on our future
sustainable development.

Labor Standards

The Group respects human rights and strictly prohibit
any unethical hiring practices, including child labor and
forced labor in the workplace. Policies and procedures
are established to comply with the relevant labor laws
and regulations. During the recruitment process, we
review the identity documents of the applicants and
never hires any applicant below the legal working
age. The work hours of staff are in line with the
relevant local labor laws and regulations. Staff consent
for working overtime is needed so as to prevent
forced overtime work; and they are compensated in
accordance with the requirement of the relevant laws
and regulations.
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Compensation and Welfare

We insist maintaining harmonious relationship with
our employees and to create a win-win situation.
Staff remuneration varies among shops and offices
at different locations. We follow the local laws
and regulations in setting up staff work hours and
remuneration package. We align our remuneration
management to the business development strategies;
to keep it flexible; and the design of the remuneration
system is to provide adequate incentives and stimulus
to our people; to ensure that our Group can have
sustainable business development. Our staff pay level is
competitive in the market. In order to effectively attract
high-quality talent, our average staff remuneration is
competitive within the region; and the core staff in
the same industry is also competitive. We regularly
review and evaluate our employees’ performance; and
we have set up a performance-based remuneration
scheme. Staff salaries is adjusted according to business
performance, and indicated that the business result
and employee pay level are closely related. Besides,
employee compensation level changes according to
one’s job position and achievements. The remuneration
adjustment is bigger for outstanding performers; this is
to provide positive impact to our employees.

Employees are entitled to retirement protection scheme
with reference to the local labor laws and regulations.
Staff in Mainland China participate in the social security
scheme, five insurance and housing provident fund.
Hong Kong employees participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Employees are entitled to rest
days and holidays in compliance with the local laws
and regulations, such as statutory holidays, paid annual
leave, sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave,
compassionate leave, and leave for visiting relatives and
so on. Besides, we offer a number of additional staff
benefits, such as work, birthday and festive welfare gifts
(Spring Festival, International Working Women’s Day,
Mid-Autumn Festival, etc.), communication allowance,
medical expenses, transportation allowance, special job
subsidies, long service award, confidentiality allowance
and competition subsidies. In the current year, we
provided financial assistance to two employee’s children,
and free body check-up services to employees who are
in difficulties. We follow the local laws and regulations
for employee dismissal and compensation payment.
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In order to enrich our employees’ personal life, we
irreqgularly organize activities such as activities for female
staff on the International Working Women's Day, fun
games, speech contest, rope skipping competition,
skill competitions, etc. We also want to improve
their cohesion, sense of belonging and team spirit by
organizing these activities. To better reflect the concept
of humanized corporate management and to show our
care and love for our people, we pay visits and show
our condolences for staff unfortunately having illness,
injured at work, death or accidents, employees’ spouses
or immediate family members passed away, and at time
of major festivals.

By offering competitive remuneration, benefits and
organizing a variety of activities, we attract and retain
our talents not only by means of “compensation”
but also by means of “relationship”, “career”, and
“working platform”.
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Development and Training

As a talent-oriented corporate enterprise, we
established a stringent and comprehensive recruitment
system, standards and procedures; introduced
competition mechanism, hoping to explore and cultivate
professional talents. We provide path for staff climbing
up the career ladder, and to build a professional team
by offering those staff positions requiring specific
knowledge, skills or qualifications. This is particular
important to keep our Group’s development sustainable.
In order to encourage our people to continue learning
in a systematic way, we build the atmosphere so that
everyone is eager to learn and offer a series of on-the-
job training courses; and facilitate self-learning. In order
to meet the development needs of the company, we
build a well-established and professional corporate team
and a learning organization, to raise the overall quality
and ability of the team, and improve the work efficiency.
We have formulated a series of training programme to
fit in our business development, including foundation
training, skills advancement, professional and
management training. We focus on improving the
staff quality, professionalism and management needs,
we raise our people’s skills and knowledge by offering
training. Executives, semi-senior and senior technical
personnel can join local and overseas training whenever
appropriate. For those critical staff roles and positions
meeting the business development needs as particularly
covered under our human resources development plan,
we commission outside professional organizations to
develop and deliver professional trainings to our talents
in a way to build and strengthen our professional
team to support the competitive development of our
business. We hope to grow together with our people.
During the reporting period, on top of providing our
new hires with pre-employment training, we also
organized various internal training programs. The
training topics include tax, new brand promotion, case
sharing, etiquette, cash security management, elevator
safety management and so on.
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Health and Safety

We are committed to providing employees with a
safe working environment and developing a safety
management manual to strengthen our fire safety
management in our business sites, key departments
and offices. Smoking is prohibited for staff and
customers; and we target to keep our department
stores, shopping mall, supermarkets and offices smoke-
free. We designated staff to regularly carry out fire
prevention patrol every day at all locations and critical
departments; patrol records are properly kept. We take
immediate remediation or precautions once fire hazards
are found. In compliance with the local fire prevention
standards and policies, we have stringent management
on fire equipment and facilities; have them regularly and
properly maintained; and keep records.

Safety education and training work plays an important
role to ensure the workplace is safe. New hires must
receive safety training prior to put into work. This
is to make sure that staff have the necessary safety
knowledge in their position; familiar and able to master
the safety techniques required. Key and special positions
(such as fire control center) have to take professional
training and pass the examination before they are
assigned to take up the role. Firefighters have to be
familiar with and master the use of various types of
fire prevention facilities to ensure that they can operate
with the equipment for fighting fire. We conduct safety-
related activities and competitions in various forms each
year to raise our employees’ safety awareness.

Staff of special work types (such as electrician,
welders) must possess valid license before they are
allowed to report duty. Illegal operations are strictly
prohibited. Carpenter should promptly clean up with the
sawdust and shavings after job completion. Fireworks,
inflammables, explosive, chemical or dangerous
materials are prohibited and no storage is allowed.
Paint workers should not blend paints on-site; and fire
is banned for paint blending off-site. Paints should
be covered with lids immediately after use. Operation
should not be carried out if the location is close to fire
and electric power.
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IV.

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group did not have
violations relating to labor practices.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

We are dedicated to maintaining long-term,
stable and strategic cooperative relationships with
leading suppliers, and are committed to a strategic
procurement-led approach, achieving co-development
with our suppliers on the basis of equality and win-
win situation. We have established supply chain
management system with strict requirements to provide
various reporting channels to employees, suppliers,
customers and other business parties to report and
expose any violations of laws or regulations. During the
reporting period, the Group did not have significant
issues relating to violations in this respect.

We have strict procurement procedures for purchasing
goods for department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets. We follow the evaluation system for
selecting suppliers, potential suppliers and renewal. We
regularly compile statistics and review the performance
of our suppliers, assess their capability, business
status and operational results; in order to understand
the product sales situations and make appropriate
adjustment to our strategies. The evaluation covers
reviewing of their position in the industry, their overall
capability, product quality, volume of supplies, sales
performance, quality service, business performance;
using a scoring system together with comments in word
to conduct a comprehensive evaluation. The evaluation
result is sent to management to ensure that the selected
suppliers are competitive, qualified, with a sound
internal control system, stable quality, timely goods
delivery, compliance to law and regulations, and so
on. We follow the national product safety standards to
set up stringent goods acceptance criteria for different
categories of products; to make sure that the goods
provided by suppliers are meeting the requirements of
the country in terms of quality, safety, appearance, and
labeling.
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Product and Service Responsibility

Customers are always our priority. We provide them
with good quality service and products. In order to
strengthen the brand products quality monitoring, to
maintain our credibility, to eliminate fake and shoddy
goods, and to protect the consumer rights and interests;
we follow the related local laws and regulations in
brands and goods selection; and monitor and manage
closely the brands and suppliers that we work with, and
also their merchandise quality.

In order to build up an image of excellent service,
we strictly require our staff to pay attention to their
appearance, conduct and behavior, dressing, job
descriptions and requirement, and service greetings.
We have established service quality monitoring system
to accurately evaluate the company’s service quality, to
promptly remediate problems found, and to provide
customers with satisfactory services meeting their
needs. We constantly enhance the facilities of our
shopping malls. For example, improving the nursery
room facilities of various shops. We frequently conduct
customer satisfactory survey to obtain feedbacks on
our malls’ reputation, merchandise and service quality,
shopping environment, service facilities, goods pricing,
etc. We analyze and evaluate our customers’ comments
and suggestions; and to formulate improvement plan
to enhance our service quality. In February 2018, we
obtained the quality control system certificate awarded
by CQM-QCC.

In order to strengthen our connection with customers,
we have set up the membership system since 2000.
Member services and concessions are provided
according to the member class. A customer service
consultant is assigned to each of our senior members
and focus on meeting the customer’s personal
preferences and needs. As a result, we become the
pilot enterprise in the Northwest Region. We currently
have about 400,000 to 500,000 members; and set up a
series of management policies protecting our members’
personal information and privacy. We will never transfer
member’s confidential information to other third parties
(except for the disclosure request due to legal and
regulatory requirements).

During the reporting period, the Group’s products did
not involve in significant violations and irregularities.
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Anti-corruption

The Group requires all staff to be honest, conducting
business with high integrity and follow the requirements
in business ethics and culture in order to avoid any
bribery. The behavior of those personnel involved in
operations are monitored and they are demanded
to build up a habit of complying to policies and
procedures. In order to bring the discipline inspection
and supervision work in the operation process, we
set up staff suggestion box; rewarding staff for good
suggestions; providing various channels like emails
and hotline for reporting cases of obtaining personal
interests in carrying out one’s job duties, briberies,
extortion, frauds, money laundering in breach of
policies, regulations, and laws. We handle such reports
in absolute confidence. We shall keep on improving
our whistle-blowing system and are determinant in
combating corruption and contribute to build a clean
society. During the reporting period, there was no
legal action against the Group and our employees for
corruption.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

“With all the grace we got from time, we sincerely
paying back to the society” and “Agglomerate limited
ability can shoulder huge responsibilities” are both our
corporate principles. It demonstrates our determinant
in taking up the social responsibility; to care for our
staff, to push on building a harmonious enterprise;
we establish Century Ginwa Caring Fund and to
organize other charitable donation activities to help
those in need. We are a responsible tax payer and
spare no effort in easing local employment pressure.
We pay five social security insurance premium and
public housing funds for staff in Mainland China and
the mandatory provident fund contributions for staff
in Hong Kong. We have maintained good practices in
business, environmental protection and achieve a good
development order, were a role model for the industry;
and to some certain extent, we have contributed to
social stability and building up of harmonious society.
The following are our major community investment
activities held during the reporting period:
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April 2017 With the theme of “Power of a Person, One Handkerchief”, we promoted the
Green Charity Environmental Protection activity, hoping people to use handkerchief
to substitute for tissue.
—E—1tFOAHG RO NE AT REE RAEBRFZELARRREE SEUAFHEAERD-
July 2017 We organized activities to give sunscreen, drinks and cooling products to the traffic
police and parking staff who work under high temperature in Xi'an.
“E—EFLAD BMER MSAEUABRXREBZR] B EAXHKERANBERLT  BREH
TENRBER HEABZXLHBR Ko BRAm%F-

5 March 2018 We organized activities with Lei Feng spirit, let staff participate in the volunteer

VI.

work of cleaning The Bell Tower.

—T-)\$=ARH BMAKPES

8 March 2018
planted 90 trees.

ABEET2HEBFREZNREE T

Our 35 employees participated in the plantation activity to protect The Jinghe and

T /\F=ANR #FI35ME T2 EEREZANEEEE  HEB0R -

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE IMPLEMENTATION

ESG Committee is established and chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. The committee members
include representatives from major departments,
including the Human Resources Department, the
Marketing Planning Department, the Enterprise
Management, the Internal Control Department, the
Engineering Property Center, the Finance Department,
the Employees’ Union, etc. The ESG Committee will
follow the requirement of laws and regulations; and to
conduct business following appropriate best practices;
like setting up ESG targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines. In order to promote our Group's business
and the long-term sustainable development of the
local community of our business locations, we improve
our corporate governance, protect the environment,
engage our stakeholders and to contribute to the
society. We have five ESG Task Forces under the ESG
Committee, with keys members from the relevant
departments assisting the ESG Committee to supervise
and monitor the progress of various ESG activities, to
coordinate in setting up key performance indicators, to
regularly assess the effectiveness, and to hold seminars
to enhance the staff awareness in environmental
protection. The ESG Committee is responsible for
submitting reports and improvement proposals to the
Board on a periodic basis.
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The terms of reference, organizational structure,
reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are

as follows:

Community and
Shareholders/
Investors Focus
Task Force

HENBRRREE
Bixha

Xi'an - Enterprise
Management
AR-GtEER

* To maintain good
communication with
shareholders and
other stakeholders,
and to enhance
shareholders value in
the long run

* To care for the
community and
people in need;
to ensure that
the interests of
the community
are considered in
conducting business
activities

o ERRMEMBNE
RERFNER RE
REMREE

s BLHENARR
T BREBEYEE
AL M 2%

ESGRE & BEFE

AHABZRE

EHREBLRKENT:

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
Leader: Chief Executive Officer
(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)
BE HEREREES

FE THAR

(REERE FRELAWE)

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Employees and
Occupational Safety
Focus Task Force
ETHRZ

B

Xi'an - Human
Resources Department

AR - ADERS

R

Convenor

B HEREREES

B&A

Suppliers
Focus Task Force

HEm

B

Xi'an -

Purchasing Department

R - KB

To care for our people, * To pay attention to

from recruitment,
training to developing
our employees

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team
To give appropriate
encouragement

and recognition to
employees

To provide a safe
working environment
To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

BISTIMME BE

ME
EEEGERFNE
BANED
HETHRTEENR
BRkET
REZEOTERE
IR BR KGF
P& Lok

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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product safety of
suppliers

To focus on the
procurement
procedures and the
practice in supplier
selection

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
suppliers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group
BIRERAMT S
BIREREANER
R ) E I

B e (RIS R AT R
ERMBETELRE MR
EEENBE JiEN
ARENER

Customers
Focus Task Force

£F

BiEE

Xi'an - Customer
Service Department

AR-BEERKH

* To concern about the
customers' service
quality expectations

* To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

¢ To focus on protecting
our customers' rights
and interests; and
their privacy

o WIBERBEZL
HE
BERRERFNE
BANRYEE ek
SENBE FEMNT
SRR

o WIERMERNE

PHLERE

Environmental
Focus Task Force
RERE

B

Xi'an - Engineering
Property Center
AR -IRWEPL

e To cultivate a
corporate culture in
promoting energy
conservation, to
prevent pollution, to
reduce emissions and
to reduce wastes

* To pay attention to
the environmental
protection related
policies, measures
and effectiveness
(including setting
up of KPIs and
performance
evaluation)
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VISION OUTLOOK

As a good corporate citizen, the Group hopes to
balance between achieving the corporate economic
goals and business objectives, and to fulfilling their
social responsibility. The Group will continue to pay
attention to environmental protection, employee care,
product and service quality, and community contribution
so as to create niche for sustainable development.

As for environmental protection, the Group will
endeavor to comply with the stringent environmental
protection laws and regulations, and actively promote
and participate in various environmental protection
activities. When it comes to employee care, the Group
will put employee satisfaction and safety as our top
priority. Through ensuring occupational safety and
a competitive system, the Group aims to attract
more talents. As far as product and service quality
are concerned, the Group will continue to provide
customers with high quality products and services.
For community contribution, the Group is committed
to fulfilling its social responsibility by participating in
charitable activities and promoting the community’s
sustainable development.

The Group aims at becoming a respectable enterprise,
and hopes to improve business performance and create
more meaningful value for our stakeholders through
implementing sustainability strategies.
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VIIl. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA

SUMMARY

Greenhouse gas emission ("GHG"):

BERE:
Scope 1#
EE—*
Scope 2#
EHE

Air emission:

BRAEHENE:
Nitrogen oxides
REY
Sulfur oxides
=Xl
Particles
FERL

Energy and water consumption:

BERRKEREEE:
Electricity

BN
Diesel
geom
Gasoline
i
Water
KEIR

Packaging materials used for merchandize:

AmiTAERME:

# Scope 1 refers to the Group’s business direct GHG
emissions, including combustion of diesel and gasoline.

’” Scope 2 refers to the Group’s business indirect GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased

electricity.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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N RERBRABE

Unit 2017/18
By —2—t/ —-NFE

Tonnes 57.96
U7
Tonnes 40,573.13
98
Tonnes 3.01
U7
Tonnes 0.39
198
Tonnes 0.91
i
Kilowatt hours 43.54
(in million)
TEHREE)
Tonnes 11.48
U7
Tonnes 5.56
95
Tonnes 352,809.80
7
Tonnes 21
U7
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“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND h BXFRY (BE-HERE
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY B E) Mg
HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE
Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs”)  Reporting Guideline Page
BREXER & 15 5l HE
A. Environmental
A. R
Aspect A1 Emissions 68
EEA1 23,87
General Information on:
Disclosure (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
— AR FR EABERIBEERBHERAIKE TN AERBEEEMNE
HER):
(@ HEEX
(b) BEFHETABBEATZENHBZEZLRINER -
KPI AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 84

R824 WUEIEAT
KPI A1.2

BB 4B AR IR A2

KPI'A1.3

BB AE AR IRA13

KPI'A1.4

BB AE IR IRA1.4

KPI A1.5
FASR AR IR RAT1S

BETE AR AR B B BUR

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 84
intensity ' (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BERBRBENE (U E) R (ER)BE (WMABEEEM §18
RHEETE ) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, N/A?
intensity ' (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FIEEBEREEMAESE (UEAE) R(ER)ZE (MAEBESSEML - TEMA?
BIEXRBEAHE)-

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 84
appropriate, intensity ' (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

FrEAREEEYEE (UEE) R(ER)EE (MAGESEN
BIEXREAHE ).

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 68
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Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
BAREMIER

KPI A1.6

R B BIEIRAL6
Aspect A2

EEA2

General Disclosure
— =

KPI A2.1

B SR 48 B IZ A2 1

KPI' A2.2

BB 4B AR IR A2.2

KPI A2.3
S AR B IR A2 .3

KPI A2.4

RAIRAE IEIZA2 .4

KPI' A2.5

B 4B IS IRA2.5

Aspect A3
MA3

General Disclosure
—REE
KPI A3.1

B S 45 B 1R A3 1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERER

S

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

Description of how hazardous 2 and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

Ml REAE NETEZEYN R REELENEBEMERR -

Use of Resources

BREHR

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BRERER BEER K REMRMA KK

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity ' (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

RENEISNEER SMEER(INE Rl BREE(UTETRE
Rat ) REE (A ES B - §IARBTHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity '
volume, per facility).

BRKERZE (IAE

(e.g. per unit of production
EBEN  FEREAE)-

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

i A B IRAE A AR a5 B R FR1SAKR »

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Fi st SRERGE A /KR £ A A AR R - A R AR T Rk s st 81 K Pris

% o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced '.

S mAABEMENEE (UAE) L (ER) SEEEUNAE

The Environment and Natural Resources

RENMNKAER

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources

BIEBETAHREMAAERERBEATZENBEK -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

Ml EBEZHHRERRAERNEAZENERNEEREATE
B1TH -
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Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs")

BERENER
Aspect B1
EmEB1

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Aspect B2
[E EB2

General Disclosure

— R

Aspect B3

JEHB3
General Disclosure

—RIKE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRS

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

Page

B. Social 3
B. #&s3
Employment and Labor Practices

(0

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERAFNEEBERET TIEREC- RS TERE 2Tt R

ISR LA B E A 755 588 2 @ A Y-

(@ HEXRK

(b) BEFHETABEAZENHBZZMRAINER -

72,78

Health and Safety
REHEZR
Information on: 77 - 78
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BRRMLZ2TERELREEEHABELEEN
(@ HEEX
(b) BEFHETABEAZENHBZZMRAINER -

Development and Training

BR RIEI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.

BFRARTEERT TERENMNB NN BE - HEIEE -
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Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")

BRENER
Aspect B4
[E B4

General Disclosure

— R E

Aspect B5

JE HB5
General Disclosure

— R E
Aspect B6

[E T B6
General Disclosure

— R

Aspect B7

EHB7
General Disclosure

— R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRHESE

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

Labor Standards

g g

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.

B RABH L E T ko il 4 THY:

(@) HBR K

(b) BTFHETABERZENHEBEERANBER -

Supply Chain Management

HtEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

EERMHEENRE ML GRERBUR -

Product Responsibility

BmmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

ERAMREHERNRENREEELE BE BEEILBEEARME

T ER):

(@) BEK

(b) BTFTHERTABERZENHBEEELBRIBER -

Anti-corruption

RES

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI IERER B R  EEFREBRED

(a) HBE R

(b) BTFHETABERZENHEBEERANNER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs")

Reporting Guideline

BERERER HEES
Aspect B8 Community Investment
[EHB8 HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

BE HE8RERBRE

Page

80 - 81

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

— R =
AL [@ ) 25 A BRER o
Notes:

The Group’s main business is operating department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets, and not
engages in any production activity. Hence, we
recognize that the meaning of “intensity” to the Group
is not great.

The Group’s main business is operating department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets. We did not
generate any non-hazardous wastes.

Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the “Main Board
Listing Rules”, the KPIs under Area B “Social” are
recommended disclosures only. Therefore, the Group
choose not to disclose those KPIs in this report.

GEE

BN R2ERERLEMCEHEFTENEREXRBEDHEEE

AEBIEXBRKLEDERD
5By L RBRTS MR
BREFLERY F HMA
BIBEINBEBEANAEERN
BET K

AEBIEXBRELLEDED
5B O RBET S R
BREEERNEEED-

B (ERLETARRD MER278
B[ RSB E | MRREN
EERERBEZWEGR At
AEBEETRBEZSHREN

HIZ -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to
220, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statemen
the accounting policies on pages 113 to 114.

The Key Audit Matter
ERELEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

HAREEXREE (&)

BEREN

BRI A HRERMFI5REII3E114
BRZATIHR ©

ts and

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNELTPNMMEREEREE

As at 31 March 2018, goodwill, which arose from
acquisitions of businesses in prior years, amounted to
RMB888.2 million and accounted for approximately
10.5% of the Group's total assets at that date.
RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H BE(AEEFEKEX
SMmEL)E ARKS88,200,0007T ' h:2 B BEEH
EEN0.5% °

The financial performance of the Group’s department
stores and supermarket operations, as a consequence
of the slowing down of economic growth in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as well
as a consequence of intense competition from
surrounding shopping malls and online retail sales, has
underperformed management’s expectations compared
to when these business were acquired in prior years
which has increased the risk that goodwill related to
the acquisitions of these businesses may be impaired.
HRFEARLME ([FE])LEERKERREE
SZBEYPLEBSETENRFNE - BEEEAERHS
MRBHEMSEBNMBRRENEEBEBETFER
BZEXRGRHNTES ENTEARBZEXBHNEE
A] Be R B B R Bg o

Management performs impairment assessments of the
relevant CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
at the end of each reporting period. Management
compares the carrying amount of each CGU with its
recoverable amount, which is determined by assessing
the value-in-use based on discounted cash flow
forecasts.
EREEERZREARYESENENEARESES
BAETREN G -ERERSReEEEUNEREE
HEAWESELE  INESBEDBERAENURES
MIBRIFHEEREEMEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill included the following:

BHAHERERENEZEFERATER:

J assessing and challenging the Group's
identification of cash-generating units
(“CGUs") and the allocation of goodwill and
other assets to those CGUs with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o ZERTEHEANER FHERER &#&
EHReELEM ([REEELEM])HHA
RAZzEReEEBUIEREREMEE,

o assessing the reliability of management’s
cash flow forecasting process by comparing
the previous year's forecasts with the current
year's results, discussing significant variances
with management and considering the
effect of such variances on the current year’s
forecasts;

e FBHEBE—FEMNEAERNFEEESLLE T
HERERRBABEN Y HERE
AmEBEARE  WEBZREHRNFERAN

S/ 48 -
T2

J involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating management’s
valuation methodology with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards, in assessing the discount rate
applied by comparison with the discount rates
for similar companies in the same industry
and in assessing the key assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts based on available
market information and by comparison with
other companies in the same industry;

e RHEMOABHEZRLERITEER
WERBHHRMTHEREBNGES A A&
AL RITTRBUUR MR X - G ATER A
B R WERAI SN TS ER KERTT
FHMARILLE AR RERP R A
R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BREREE

HEEXER (&)
BB E R ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMMEXZPOAEESRASE

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue growth
and operating profit and in determining appropriate
discount rates.

RHEBEHSRBAS R EREBEHERHE - LHE
e TE ORI A G £ B 48 208 T A I B TE 18 5 ) B 3R 3R B o

We identified the assessment of impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the carrying
value of goodwill is material to the consolidated
financial statements, and also because management's
forecasts of the future cash flows involve certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made,
which are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

BARASEERENTEE - HERERZSFE  REZ
HENFREEHFSMBERRBEN BEBBHARNK
We MBS LB BPTELRENE THERHAG Mz
FHEAE PRI EEN AREXIEEERREOF

Z o
=
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Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill included the following:

BAHERERENEZREFERATER:

o obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis
and challenging the key assumptions to which
the outcome of the impairment assessments
was most sensitive, including forecast revenue
and forecast profit margins, and considering if
there was any indication of management bias
in the selection of these assumptions; and

e EHNEREMNGRESN BRBENGER
BURE AR RER (2SRRI KT8 BIF]E
R) EREGAEMNBREREEELERE
ZEBRXFFEEEERRE: &

J considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessments with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

o ZEWRITEFEANER  ZRESMBEREK
REBRERTHEBEE -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and

investment property

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 116 to 118.

The Key Audit Matter
BREXREE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

HAREEXREE (&)
BEBRAZ I REFURKREYE ML
&
BRAHGEEMBERENMNTI2RIZUAKE
1162 118H A B 5 E -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNERTNMEEERSEE

The Group is engaged in the operation of department
stores, a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC.
EEEI2NFEETRLLAEES BYPORER

mi5e

The Group's land and buildings held for own use and
investment property are revalued at the end of each
reporting period and are stated at their fair values.
EEEREFERZEIHREBTFURREMERNE RS
HAREM REQAABEARK.

As at 31 March 2018, land and buildings held for own
use and an investment property with aggregate fair
value of RMB4,297 million accounted for approximately
51% of the Group’s total assets at that date.
RZFE—LtHF=ZA=1t—"H B2REARARY
4,297,000,000T MR EB A Z L REFUARKEY
¥E%E BEEEABENS%

The fair values of land and buildings held for own use
and the investment property were assessed by the
board of directors based on independent valuations
prepared by an external property valuer using certain
estimates, which included comparable market prices.
FEERAZ LM REFURKEMENAARBEIRE
EENIINMELEMERASE T (BREAIELR
M5 ER) RmEN B (HEM G-

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment property as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to the
Group's total assets and also because determining their
fair values involves a significant degree of judgement.
BPRRFIEER LM EBFULREMENGE
RTBERARERFE REASHEBEEY S5EEEE
BEXN BETHEAAEBINERREZE N HE-

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
leasehold land and buildings held for own use and
investment property included the following:
BMFHERFEE R T REBFURKREMEGHE
WEZREFEFENATEE:

o assessing the external property valuer's
qualifications, expertise and experience
in the locations and types of properties
subject to valuation and considering the
external property valuer’s objectivity and
independence;

o FTHANERYD I (B AR AL ik (B 1) 3 3t B S SR A
FTEHNER BREER TEZEBEHTHER
BN

o assessing whether the properties held by
the Group were valued on a consistent basis
using a consistent methodology by inquiry
of management and the external property
valuer;

o FBRENERBERINIMEMLEM T &
SERBNYERSHER —BEE —HE
AR

J involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing the valuations prepared
by the external property valuer by evaluating
the valuation methodology adopted and
comparing the valuations with recent sales
transactions of properties of the same type
and in the same location as the Group's
properties which were subject to valuation;
and

o RHERFIR A EB AL B F K 15 B T FI 5T {4 5N &6
MELEMREEGE  HEPTRANGES
FohREER EEEGEDENERL Rt
EHERNMROOHEERS &

. considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
valuation of land and buildings held for own
use and investment property with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

o ZEWRITEFEANER  ZRESMBRK
REARBEERZ T REFURKEYE
HERRKE-

HESEHEERERAA
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Tsz Chung.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEE®ZXR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)) (U ARE ([AR®K])Z7])
2018 2017
—E-N\F — &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it it AR¥F T ARBF T
Revenue Uy &= 4 1,159,060 1,144,753
Other revenue H b U 2 5 17,658 24,179
Cost of goods sold BEmifEKAR 20 (557,206) (498,179)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges 5 & = 4th £ 18 & B hnF3 (34,416) (37,893)
Staff costs BT pA 6(b) (146,462) (149,339)
Operating lease expenses TERERY (51,283) (65,161)
Depreciation expenses MERX 12 (141,959) (141,137)
Utilities expenses NEEERS (42,182) (47,216)
Advertisement expenses EERX (26,878) (35,511)
Impairment losses on goodwill BEREEE 15 = (273,016)
Other operating expenses HEfh &M (32,875) (112,491)
Profit/(loss) from operations KESHR () 143,457 (191,011)
Valuation gain on an investment KREMEHEKRZS
property 13 200 =
Net finance costs BB R FEE 6(a) (96,997) (136,851)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREIATRF, (EEE) 6 46,660 (327,862)
Income tax Frig 7 (23,012) (22,084)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERA(FE) 23,648 (349,946)
Attributable to: HUTALEMN:
Equity shareholders of the RABIRR
Company 27,234 (352,337)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR RE 25 (3,586) 2,391
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEHF, (FE) 23,648 (349,946)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF,(FEH8)
Basic (RMB) ERX(AR%T) 11(a) 0.012 (0.152)
Diluted (RMB) e (AR%T) 11(b) 0.011 (0.152)

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREBERHEMEZEKRE KR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (AA R Z31)
2018 2017
—E-NE  —TtF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it &t ARMF T ARKF T
Profit/(loss) for the year REERAN, (EE) 23,648 (349,946)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEZEKE (KK
for the year (after tax and REREHI>ERAE) :
reclassification adjustments):
ltem that will not be reclassified to T E@EFHEEER 2B
profit or loss: B:
— Surplus on revaluation of land —BEfMFIEERz 1 NE
and buildings held for own use FER 10 70,646 60,874
ltems that may be reclassified HeAEFIBEERZE
subsequently to profit or loss: H:
— Available-for-sale financial — A ESREE: AR
assets: net movement in the fair BEREEZHFE
value reserve 10 (50,760) 10,359
— Exchange differences on —HBRE2INEEZERE
translation into presentation ]
currency 10 20,529 (36,482)
(30,231) (26,123)
Other comprehensive income AREEHMEE K
for the year 40,415 34,751
Total comprehensive income rEERXERSEEATE
for the year 64,063 (315,195)
Attributable to: AT ALTEMW:
Equity shareholders of the ZAN/NESTE EES
Company 74,637 (319,230)
Non-controlling interests FEVER A (10,574) 4,035
Total comprehensive income RAEEZHWEARE
for the year 64,063 (315,195)

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R O
At 31 March 2018 R=-ZZE—/\F=H=+—H
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AR¥EZ5I)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥FT AREFTT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ) ER =Y 12 3,186,870 3,175,792
Investment property "EME 13 1,332,600 1,366,500
Intangible assets BVEE 14 424,812 424,812
Goodwiill B 15 888,151 888,151
Prepayments for acquisition of W g Y 2 2 TN 3R I8
properties 17 1,139,060 879,727
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 18 296,400 367,612
Interests in joint ventures REEDERER 1 -
Deferred tax assets R IEE E 26(b) 11,393 2,265
7,279,287 7,104,859
Current assets REBEE
Short-term investments HERE 19 160,761 150,274
Inventories T8 20 73,499 76,152
Trade and other receivables JrE Uiz R 5k K% L th i Uk R 21 351,970 506,207
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEGFNFERS 22 614,681 512,697
1,200,911 1,245,330
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JRE At BRR R B L At JE 5 73R 23 1,095,317 940,931
Bank and other loans RIT R EME R 24(a) 792,149 790,874
Income tax payable FET RIS 26(a) 44,618 37,354
1,932,084 1,769,159
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (731,173) (523,829)
Total assets less current HWEEBRBES
liabilities 6,548,114 6,581,030
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Bank loans RITEN 24(b) 1,541,000 1,666,000
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 26(b) 621,515 597,725
2,162,515 2,263,725
NET ASSETS EEFHE 4,385,599 4,317,305

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBERRE
At 31 March 2018 R=-ZF—N\F=ZA=1+—H
(Expressed in RMB)  (AARKZ31)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

i AREFT ARBETT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR & E 27

Share capital A& AR 199,369 198,480

Reserves & 4,047,991 3,970,012
Total equity attributable to ARBRRELER AR

equity shareholders of the

Company 4,247,360 4,168,492
Non-controlling interests FERER 138,239 148,813
TOTAL EQUITY AR 4,385,599 4,317,305

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEFeR T N\FNA-F++BH#E

27 June 2018. R RE T3 o
Kam Hou Yin, John Sha Yingjie
Ko DER
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial  5£107E2208 2 W 5T TR 52 Z B &
statements. Z E#BA7 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaRS X

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB)  (UAAR¥EZ27)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARRES

Shares

held under

share Property Non-
Share Share award Capital  Contributed ~ revaluation ~ Fairvalue  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve reserve Teserves reserve profits Total  interests equity

RERH

LR n%

kA RAEE HENRD  AAEE  SARR  EREE MABEE  EREE  ENEE  REEA B rhEE  ERLE
RMB000  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMBT000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
AEETT AREFn ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT AREFn ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

20) 226 276i) 27 i) 7)) 27 27 27(@)vi) 27

(Mt (Wit (Wit (Wi if3 (K (Wi (W (K

270) 200) 200 2d6)  2dW)  200))  2dW)  27@)  27aNi)

Balance at 1 April 2016 ~ R=F-xEMA-H
33 198480 1,133,854 2922) (769) 995,255 993,921 (1,534) 124,327 143,483 899536 4483631 144,778 4,628,409

Changes in equity forthe ~ AFEEHEH:

year:
(LossYprofit for the year RER (BE) /&7 - - - - - - - - - (392337 (352330) 2391 (349,946)
Other comprehensive income ~ £ 2 BMi% - - - - - 60,874 8,715 - (36,482) - 33,107 1,644 34,751

Total comprehensive income ~ FAZEMNEEE
for the year = = = = = 60,874 8715 = (36,482)  (352337)  (319.230) 4,035 (315,195)

Equity-setted share-based ~ RIRER MR SAF

transactions (Note 25(a)) 2R (Hitse) - - - 4,091 - - - - - - 4091 - 4,091
Transfer between resenves  GifREE - - - (83%) - - - - - 8352 = = =
Appropriation to reserves  BAZEIE - - - - - - - 4326 - (4,326) - - -

- - - (4,261) - - - 4326 - 4026 4091 - 4,091
Balance at 31 March 2017 RA=Z-t%=R
=t+-REH 198480 1,133,854 92 (5030) 995255 105479 7081 128653 107001 551225 4168492 148813 4317305

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial —~ 5107E 2208 » M 5T TR 2 8 =
statements. Z BBt e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaRgB X

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (A A B Z71)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRRRER
Shares
held under
share Property Non-
Share Share award Capital  Contributed revaluation ~ Fairvalue  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium scheme reserve surplus reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits Total  interests equity
RERSE
BitlsE NEEf M FER
kx  RiEd fRe EARE  HARR R BE  EERE EXRE REEW Eh BE ERAE
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETL ARKTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETL ARKTR ARKTT ARETR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
) 27 27di) 27 27 27(d) — 27(d)i)) - 27(c)fvi)
a0)  a60)  200)  20i)  27H) 206)  2760) 27
Balance at 1 April 2017  R=E-t£MA-A
&8 198480 1,133,854 (2.922) (5,030) 995255 1,054,795 7181 128,653 107,001 551,225 4,168,492 148813 4,317,305
Changes in equity for the AFEE#EH:
year:
Profitiloss) for the year RERET/ (B8) - - - - - - - - - une 73 (3586) 23,648
Other comprehensive income £ 2B & - - - - - 70646 (43,772) - 20,529 - 47,403 (6,988) 40415
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENZLE
for the year - - - - - 70,646 43,112) - 20,529 21,34 74,631 (10,574) 64,063
Shares issued under share
option scheme (Notes 25(a)
and 27(c)(iv)) 889 2,141 = (786) = = = = - - 2,844 - 2,844
Equity-settled share-based
transactions (Note 25(3)) - - - 1,387 - - - - - - 1,387 - 1,387
Transfer between reserves
(Note 27(¢)fv)) = = = (33,143) = = = - - 33143 - - -
Appropriation to reserves - - - - - - - 932 - (932) - - -
889 2,14 - (32,542) - - - 932 - 2.1 4231 - 4231
Balance at 31 March 2018 R=F-\§=A
=t-B&8 199,369 1,136,595 (2922  (37572) 995255  1,125.441 (36,591) 129,585 121,530 610,670 4,247,360 138239 4,385,599

F£107E22208 2 SR ZS W B HK
Z B8bn -

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA AR¥EZ%I)
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ft i AR® T ARBF T
Operating activities RETEE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEL DS A, (E8) 46,660 (327,862)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 141,959 141,137
Impairment losses on goodwill EHEREEE 15 - 273,016
Net loss on disposal of property, BEM BWER&EZEE
plant and equipment ek 6(c) 630 18,074
Valuation gain on an investment KEMEMLEKS
property 13 (200) -
Interest income ) B U A 5 (8,899) (18,479)
Dividend income % B A 5 (900) =
Net finance costs Bi 75 & %58 6(a) 96,997 136,851
Net income on a financial EETERERFRA
guarantee issued 5 (5,660) (5,700)
Equity-settled share-based R 4 B AR D 2 11 2 3K
payment expenses HAX 1,387 4,091
Changes in working capital: LEESE
Decrease in inventories T8 2/ 2,653 14,501
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JrE Wi BR 3k % L th i UL R 2 R
other receivables A () 160,489 (23,369)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JE 1~ BR 2k % L 4t B A~ 3k 2 42
other payables mn/ Cmd) 121,563 (210,407)
Net cash generated from REXEBREEZFES
operations 556,679 1,853
Income tax paid E S 26(a) (14,275) (30,101)
Net cash generated/(used in) REEBEE (FR)2F
from operating activities BE 542,404 (28,248)

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (A A B Z71)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fif ARMFR AREFT
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of BEWE BERZEMNK
property, plant and equipment (26,108) (32,860)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREYX  KE M&EZTE
plant and equipment I 956 1,755
Payments for acquisition of W B 2 2 1R
properties 17 (200,000) (120,000)
Payments for purchase of short- BEREHREENK
term investments - (672,500)
Proceeds from repayment of loan WERKE=FERZ
receivables from third parties FriS 18 96,100 -
Proceeds from redemption of short-  f& [2] 55 B3% & FT 1S 3018
term investments 3,893 913,702
Payment for purchase of available- BEAHHESBMEENK
for-sale financial assets - (20,000)
Payment for loan receivables to HEKERRE =S
third parties (86,200) (21,000)
Interests received 2 W F B 5,006 5,177
Dividends received from investments # A it i E RSB H R E
in available-for-sale equity BEEHRE
securities 900 =
Payment for investments in joint REGELEMNK
ventures 1) -
Net cash (used in)/generated REETS (FR) EEZF
from investing activities BE (205,454) 54,274

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA AR¥EZ%I)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ft i AR¥FT ARBF T
Financing activities il & 5 B
Proceeds from new bank loans LR ITE RS RIE 22(b) 281,097 1,220,000
Proceeds from new other loans IS E i B KT S A 22(b) 142,176 210,000
Repayment of bank loans EEIFITER 22(b) (419,816) (1,401,392)
Repayment of other loans EEHEMER 22(b) (117,000) =
Proceeds from shares issued under — BEPMAERT B3 1T 2 R Z TS
share option scheme /TAIE 27 2,844 -
Payments for redemption of warrants [& [o] 52 B 48 75 1< 5% - (15,184)
Increase in restricted cash at bank xﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁﬁ% hn 22(a) (11,000) (136,030)
Proceeds from advances from related B A 23k 2 A5 28
parties 32,000 -
Other finance costs paid E B AT R E A AN 22(b) (151,569) (184,882)
Net cash used in financing METHEAZFRE
activities (241,268) (307,488)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRkReEEER 2 FE
and cash equivalents i, CRa) 95,682 (281,462)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FHHERRSEZEIER
beginning of the year 22(a) 375,056 655,946
Effect of foreign exchange rate ¥ HBRSE o &
changes (169) 572
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FREERRLSEEIER
end of the year 22(a) 470,569 375,056

The notes on pages 107 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”). The principal activities of the Group
are the operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

YNEIR-—¢ 2
HESEHEZERER AR ([AA
AR _EEZEFNANEBRER
RE-—NN\—FRAVERBRERM
Y BEREER AT - AR R 2K
MR-ZZFEEZEF AT =HREE
EEBBERSFMBARAR ([HR
Frl) Eme-ARBEHE_ZTE—N\F=
AR=T—BLEFEZHEUHHEREES
BARBIREMBRAR (REAE
B AEBZFEXBARFEA
REME ([FE])&EAERS B
YR KB AR TR 5 ©

FTESHEE

(a) BHIEA
ZEVBHRREREMBERZ
BRMBHRELER ([BEYH
WEER]) - BREBLGFEQ
g((BEEMAg])EHZ
FrAER 2 BRI BB B RELE
A BB EER ([HEGE
A EaBAREERRE
JRA- ZEMBRRITTEER
N EMED) 2 8RR AR E A K
BRES EmAR(TERR
Al]) 2R BRI - AR EIR
MZETBGABERIBANT -

BEGAIAGERMBE THA]
FEER] 2 BBM R E LR -
TRAKEZ AP HHEER
R P IR R R - 8RR
It BN B B 2 B R] R e
Al ERIPTSI BN E I R AT R
AR Z S BREHER
ZEMBRERARE - BREER
BRI EE2(c) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 comprise the Group and the
Group’s interests in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of these financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for equity securities classified as
available-for-sale (see Note 2(g)), derivative financial
instruments (see Note 2(h)), land and buildings held
for own use (see Note 2(i)) and investment property
(see Note 2(j)) which are stated at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB731,173,000. These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, because the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that based on a cash
flow forecast of the Group for the year ending 31
March 2019 prepared by the management, which
take into account of unutilised banking facilities of
RMB291,275,000 as at 31 March 2018 (see Note
24(e)) and the Group’s ability of financing new bank
and other loans as needed, the Group would have
adequate funds to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due at least twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
impact on the accounting policies of the Group.
However, additional disclosure has been included
in Note 22(b) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments
to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure
initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

2 FESTHE(#)

(b)

(c)

BB REREE (F)

RZE—N\F=A=+—H K
EBRBEEFEAARK
731,173,0007C ° ;2 S 47 & B 7%
WMERMLZFEKEEERFR
ARARREERAE BEER
BRIENBE_T—NLE=A
=+ HIEFENAEERS
IR (RERBR-_Z—N\F=
A=Z+—BWMAHABTEE
AR #291,275,0007t ( B M5+
24(e)) R ARG BERERELT
WITREMERWEEN) - A&
EEAEETEERREREHR
RBEL+_@AZBNERE-

R AAREERA B ER
BRI SR A B IRE )
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BB HREER ZEFT RAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEE(#)
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(d) MBRRAKRFZERES (F)

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(m)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Notes 2(f) and (m)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Joint ventures (continued)

(f)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint venture are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(m)), unless classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(f) Goodwill (continued)

(9)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash- generating units, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(m)(ii)).

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities not at fair
value through profit or loss are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs,
where fair value is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based
on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets.

Investments in debt and equity securities which do
not fall into the categories of loans and receivables,
investments in securities held for trading or held-to-
maturity are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from equity securities and
interest income from debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit
or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
Notes 2(w)(v) and 2(w)(vi), respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

When the investments in debt and equity securities
are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(m)(i)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments in debt
and equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments may be embedded
in other financial instruments, for example,
interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 2(p)) with
an embedded warrant. Embedded derivatives are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely
related to those of the host contract; the terms of
the embedded derivatives would meet the definition
of a stand-alone derivative if they are contained in a
separate contract; and the combined contract is not
held for trading or designated at fair value. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes therein recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are classified
as assets when their fair value is positive, or
as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different
transactions are only offset if the transactions
are with the same counterparty, a legal right of
offsetting exists, and the parties intend to settle the
cash flows on a net basis.

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

2 FESTHE(#)

(9)

(h)

EERERISRE (&)

fHAERAER MR R IR E R I
R SORE (R KT FEm)G)) - 8l
KRR Rt B RIEH D
BERm NEBLEEESFR
ERAEEAEBAHERE
SEFEE B T UAMR 4L

=
8 ©

PTEEMIA
PTEERITESLEARAERER
REBEREHR  2AETHRE
MAB -BHIEEQAAEZE
s BB 0 1B 2 TR o

TESRMTAXKEASEMSE
BMTE flwst e (RHEE
2p)) AT RBEEE -BEZXF
TETAZEESE RERER
HESHTATIBANZKER
B K R\ B I 4% BR 7R Ko & ) R (&
B SR 0TAE T A 2 R (M
EHNBLEHAN) ENEEIL
TTETAZER  WRAHBH
WIRFHER 2 G HIRIERR A
REIRE  ZFRSITETR
BWAIEBLZITET R I F
NETETIASRAAENE
MARBEZEAZEBRINERA
FERR °

ETEERTIAZARERLE
gOHERBREE HRAR
ARBERRE - MRXZHEXTTHE
Rl AFEYH & AER  m
BRI ARRARGERER
TR TAHETRARSZITE

TREERARE-
RS HHEERERAE
Bt/ - N\EEH

115
4



N

116

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(m)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and
is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Estimated
useful lives
Land and buildings held for own 20 — 50 years
use carried at fair value
Residential properties held for 3 - 35 years
own use carried at cost and
leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 28 years
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

(k)

0]

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(I)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(w)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(m)(ii)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as land and
buildings held for own use (see Note 2(i)) or an
investment property (see Note 2(j)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor; and

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

For receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017/18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of receivable whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against the receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other
than land and buildings carried at
revalued amounts);

—  intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of properties; and

- investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures in the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017/18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEE(#)

(continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(m) EERME (&)
(i) RteEEZHE (&)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(I)(i) and 2(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(m)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see Note 2(m)(i)).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs and,
where applicable, the fair value of the embedded
derivative financial instruments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments

Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017/18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares on grant
date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (continued)
—  Share award scheme (continued)

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(j), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
pbe settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales are
recognised when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue or net income excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any sales discounts.
No revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the possible
return of goods, or continuing management
involvement with the goods.

Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation
of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised when the related
services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(x)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’'s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle
the customers to the right to exchange
for products offered under the customer
loyalty programme. The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the
programme credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the
programme credits is estimated by reference
to the fair value of the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme, adjusted to take into account
the expected forfeiture rate. Such amount
is deferred and revenue is recognised when
the programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(z) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(aa)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group's
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 12, 13, 15, 25 and 28 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to valuation of land and buildings held for own use,
investment property, goodwill impairment, fair value of
share options granted and financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make the
required payments. The management bases the
estimates on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and historical
write-off experience. If the financial conditions of
the debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs
would be higher than estimated.

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity
securities are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below cost. The determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement from the
management. When making such judgement, the
Group considers a variety of factors, including but
not limited to the normal volatility of the security
price, the length of the period over which the fair
value is lower than cost, the magnitude of the
decline in fair value and the financial position of the
investee.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(m)(ii). The
carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or, except for
goodwill, reversal of impairment in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. The management reviews the
estimated useful lives and the residual values, of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful
lives and the residual values is based on historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 gItHERMES (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)
(e) Deferred tax (e) EZEFIE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In determining the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised, significant
judgement is required relating to the timing and
level of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net income from concession sales, rental
income from operating leases and management and
administrative service fee income. The amount of
each significant category of revenue and net income
is analysed as follows:

EBRN A AJ BE 3R R R FERBUA
ME B RIRER IR E ER 5L
REVFATRIAES 18 K A RV By 22
REREEHREE RETEH
THRAZELHREESER
FEE RARRBIE A EIRAZR - 5
2 AR IR BRI ) 2 B e S A2
JE 1E H B R A - 7% F bt H
REREE  NARK A HERE
EHMEEEC SR ELHAER-

4 WEKRDHBHRE

(a)

Wy 58
AEEZEEXH/NTEE
LRE®S BYPLRBRT

i

WatmErPEL 2 BmiHEE
B -FAEEHEEFRA KE
HEZESWA  AREERT
BARTE BUA o & E BUas KF
WARR 2 €SB DT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F AREFT

Sales of goods HmiEeE 644,650 579,412

Net income from concession sales BIrEEHEFRA 386,759 416,425

Rental income from operating leases TETRE 7S WA 73,693 85,815
Management and administrative EERITHREBRA

service fee income 53,958 63,101

1,159,060 1,144,753

LS EHEZERERA T

-t/ -N\EEFERH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued)

(a)

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's customer base is diversified and
has no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: RMBNil). Details of
concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note
28(a).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue represents the gross amount
arising from the sales of goods and concession
sales charged to retail customers, and rental
income from operating leases and management
and administrative service fee income charged to
tenants.

4 WHEKDEHKE (4)

Wi (&)
AEBRETEER Bt K
RAEERA ~NEECRFPR
b TEREPEAEEZR
SERBAAERREZE TN
FZA=+—BILFEEKHEZ
10% (BREZE—F—+F: ARK
T) BRSEFREERRZF
BT 5E28(a) ©

HBERZEHZEHN

Ul mEEmEE ATER
FZR-EEHEE KeHE
& WA R [[HE P UWE 2 & 32
FITBRBEWA Z B -

2018 2017

—E-N\E “E—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARST T

Sales of goods e s 644,650 579,412

Gross revenue from concession sales #EFE B E 7 Ui zE 2,320,766 2,466,370

Rental income from operating leases K&HEE 7B LKA 73,693 85,815
Management and administrative ERRITERBEERA

service fee income 53,958 63,101

3,093,067 3,194,698

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed below.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 6 department stores and
a shopping mall at the end of the reporting
period. During the year, one of the Group’s
department stores has been closed.

Supermarkets: this segment operates 7
supermarkets.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

4 WHEKDEHKE (4)

(b)

2| S
AEEZBEGRUETEELR
e ER DB R REFFMEM
BORNEAAKREZERRE
BEEABBEEN T A&
B2 3% A T M fE R] S 5 0 BRAE T
2 BB E D EE GHABK
AT Al #2086 -

s BHEBLBEBYHL:R
BEHR WD IEIEN
XAERSE—REDT
DEF-FAR AEE R

BE®SCHEE-

e BAMB WOBEREL
EN GV IARE S

(i) HEHEH

TROBETELHBRR
EABRERMNS A&EHE

= AR E TR B BSR A Al
HREDHEIEEE H
EEWMT :

Yoz MOF A BB < 9
Rz HmENE 12K
ZEDMAELE R R RF
WA B %% » 8B P E &
B o AT - 2 #B 2 A P2
HXEAL A TETE-

HESEHEERERAA
=2—t /-N\FER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

(b)

(i) Segment information (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit

is “adjusted EBITDA" i.e.
before interest, taxes,
amortisation”, where

“adjusted earnings
depreciation and
“interest”

is regarded as

including interest income and other financial

charges and income, and
and amortisation”

“depreciation
is regarded as including

impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets and valuation gain or loss on investment
property. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the
Group’s earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the year ended 31 March

2018 and 2017.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31
March 2018 and 2017 is set out below.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18

4 WamRkoEWHE (&)

DERE|E ()

(i)

DEER (E)
BRsBEnEarzh
VA A [ £ FEEBITDA | -
B[4 @2 2 Rt F B
THIE- T E RE R 2%
FMl-ER[HE]BEF
BUWAREAME % H &
WA - mIFTEREE] B
REREEREREEZ
REBEEEEME
BlmsEEB BT EL
FEEBITDA NEE 2 &
FE W R EFIIEEBR
ERIDE 2B B 1L #E—
W @Ik ET
ﬁﬁ¢:@i_§fﬂi

MZB—tF=HA=+—
B 1 5 2 3 A o B0 3
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WaEKkoHHmE (£)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2WweE (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) ZHBEH (E)
2018
—E-N\F
Department
stores and
shopping
mall Supermarkets Total
BEEER
By HR TS Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETHT AR¥Tn AR®ETrR

Revenue and net INRE B 2 W ek B
income from external WA K A] #hs o 2
customers and &Y= T N

reportable segment
revenue and net
income 870,697 288,363 1,159,060

Reportable segment profit A] ¥k 2 & i A

(adjusted EBITDA) ( &£ FHEEBITDA ) 275,114 13,278 288,392
2017
—E—+F
Department
stores and
shopping
mall Supermarkets Total
BEES R
B AR5 fEEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue and net INR B 2 W Ko 5
income from external WA K \] # & 5
customers and U 2 K 5 A

reportable segment
revenue and net

income 867,726 277,027 1,144,753
Reportable segment profit 7] ¥} 5 2B F

(adjusted EBITDA) (42 % EBITDA ) 226,884 4,986 231,870

S BEEZRERA A

—B-t-N\EER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

(b) ZE|/SE (&)

4 WHEKDEHKE (4)

(i) "I E D IR AR

profit
2018 2017
—E-N\&F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARSFT
Reportable segment profit A ¥ 45 5 265 A 288,392 231,870
Other revenue H it I &5 17,658 24,179
Depreciation expenses WERY (141,959) (141,137)
Impairment losses on goodwill &R EEE = (273,016)
Valuation gain on an investment % %& ¥ % (4 {8 Wz
property 200 =
Net finance costs B 7% & R F K8 (96,997) (136,851)
Unallocated head office and RO BEE R ETHHAS
corporate administration
expenses (28,567) (32,907)
Profit/(loss) before taxation B ADRF, (EE) 38,727 (327,862)
5 OTHER REVENUE 5 Hfttlz=
2018 2017
—E-N\EF T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETF T
Interest income FEMKA 8,899 18,479
Net income on a financial guarantee B 2174 B ER 2 F WA
issued 5,660 5,700
Government grant AT £ 5K 1,810 -
Dividend income A% B s A 900 -
Others HAh 389 -
17,658 24,179

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18




PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

BRBLATER, ()
BBATE R, (BB ENK (G

A
(a) Net finance costs: () MBERFHE:
2018 2017
—2-N\F —TtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARBTFIT
Interest expenses on bank and other 1T REMER 2 F B H
loans 146,509 158,329
Bank charges and other finance costs #8178 3 & H it Bt 7% & A 4,741 7,829
Total borrowing costs RIS A 151,250 166,158
Less: interest expenses capitalised B EEREAWREY ETE
into prepayments for acquisitions NREBEZFEFRX
of properties (53,333) (26,704)
Finance income on loan receivables  [EU S = 15 B3 2 B iU A
from third parties (922) (847)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) PE B 1R (Mha) F 88 2 (1,756)
96,997 136,851

(b)

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate
of 6% per annum for the year ended 31 March

=

EERAEREF6% (=
—tF:T7%)ZLEERE (R

2018 (2017: 7%) (see Note 17). BEEE17) ©
Staff costs: (b) ET A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARSFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - TENREMER 130,725 135,984
Contributions to defined contribution [A] 5 %8 FUGRE KT 2 £ 7
retirement plans 15,737 12,704
Equity-settled share-based payment  FLEBASHET Sl A4S & LARY
expenses in respect of share option {3 (B (B Hf7#25())
scheme (see Note 25(a)) = 651
146,462 149,339
LS EHEZERERA T
=2t /- N\FER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6 FMRBIADGER S (BE) (8)
(continued)
(b) Staff costs: (continued) (b) BIRA&: (&)
The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group REBRFRAKLZHBARZ
established in the PRC participate in defined EE2 MM T BTHEEIE L E
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed BEFCRAKRBHNEE B ZE
by the local government authorities, whereby MEBARAKREEEAF &
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to 20% MZEaH B - ARIT Lt
the schemes at 20% of the employees’ basic RIRETE ZEZEWBAREER
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled ERNETRNFREARER Lt
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a BIRGTEIZ B ILA B 15 E A K
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC, FEDLFE ZRKER -
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.
The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident REENREBEEERTERTES
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the SPENEB AT B RIFIEN 2 8)E
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ERTZEBEFE— @R
Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of NE2FE ([BERETE]) -
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF BERFTEA—EHRBEIIXTEA
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan BIR 7 ERMRGTE - BIRRTE
administered by an independent trustee. Under the et BEEXRHEEEHARE
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are BHEBHFEZ% (B AEBE
each required to make contributions to the plan at & FFRA30,000/8 70 ) M 5T 24
5% of the employees’ relevant salaries, subject to e MBIE R B 2 KA R
a cap of monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000. B
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of BR{EH Dt FEHFIN AR E
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual MEREMRARBINNRZE
contributions. fEo
(c) Other items: () HfER:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr AREFT
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B <
— statutory audit service —EEEZRY 3,800 3,600
— other services — H {th AR 75 280 800
Net loss on disposal of property, BEMHE WEREZEZE
plant and equipment =P 630 18,074

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBERRAMBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HREBERAZBER:
profit or loss represents:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFT ARBET T

Current taxation (see Note 26(a)): AHEABEIE ( & Hf7126(a)) :

— Provision for PRC Corporate — R EATS TR
Income Tax 20,250 27,984
— Under/(over)-provision in respect —BEFEERETRE
of prior years (FBFERE) 1,289 (2,622)
21,539 25,362
Deferred taxation (see Note 26(b)): EZLEFIE ( EHf:L26(b)) :
— Origination and reversal of —EREECZEERRE
temporary differences 1,473 (3,278)
23,012 22,084
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEBXHREHER, (HE)
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax RERABRERZAGTOT :
rates:
2018 2017
—E-N\F “T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFIL
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELAIRR, (BE) 46,660 (327,862)
Expected tax on profit/(loss) BB AR R (E518) 2 B H
before tax, calculated at the I8 AR RS A A RE &
rates applicable to profits in BERNZBRAMERGE
the tax jurisdictions concerned (2 BFaL0) ~ (i) % (i) )
(see Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) 16,944 (74,289)
Tax effect of non-deductible AAMRX H 2 BB E
expenses 9,196 78,019
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) HMIBEER (ZHEEY)) (12,909) (15,586)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not  KAER A& &) A F IS E 18 2 F1 1%
recognised -4 8,492 36,562
Under/(over)-provision in respect of @A FERETRE,
prior years (HBFEE) 1,289 (2,622)
Income tax TS %% 23,012 22,084
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax
rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: RMBNil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of 25% for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the respective
tax bureaux in 2012 that they are entitled to tax
benefits applicable to entities under the Second
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of
the PRC, and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from
2011 to 2020.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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BREH 2 EERER (=F
—tF:ARBZTIL) R
KRB ARG L B -

(i) ARRRAEERTE (R
EB ) LASN B R R M Sz 2z Bt
BRARRBES B AELME
K ZER ROER BABMER
PSR

(iiy HE=Z-—NFE=ZA=+—H
WEFE  AEBRFBKLZ
Bt B A RIZE SN B2 FTS
TR R B25% (— T —+H4F:
25% ) °

vy R-ZT——F AEBEETE
AR B K Sz 2 BT B 2 R ERYS AE RS
WP  BEZZERARN
PR AREETEEZET
ZER ARG RR I
RZE——FEZT_ZTFF
FEX15% 2 BEHBEBERR
SHIME



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEHM

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BB B R ARG FE383(NIE R A A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (BEESNRER)ROIE 2804 5=
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ZEEHMOT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2018
ZE-)\%
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors' and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
ge 2l
EShe REWERN BAGEMLR @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR

Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) R-BEE(ZE) 4,242 739 15 4,996
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter RAEXEE 1,527 301 15 1,843
Mr. Kam Hou Yim, John (appointed on PZEEE (RZF—+F
2 May 2017) hAZHEZA) 1,745 - 14 1,759
Mr. Sha Yingjie DEREE 81 - - 81
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Chen Shuai o e - - - _
Mr. Cao Yonggang Bkl 4 - - - -
Mr. Qu Jiagi BRETE 92 = = 92

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEE

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng Prlg 4 255 - - 255
Ms. Sun Zhili RBRL 255 - - 255
Dr. Cao Guogi ERHET 255 - - 255
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai Bk 255 - - 255

8,707 1,040 44 9,791

weagmperngea 131
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

8 EEFM &)

2017
“T-tF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' ~ and benefits Discretionary ~ scheme Termination Share-based
fees inkind ~ bonuses contrioutions  benefits  Subotal  payments Total
g
i Mis  RIRGE
g2 EVRY fEAL 3 &R Nt BARR h)
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO — RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBTOD
AERTT AERTL ARBTTL ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARRTT ARETR
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) R-BRE(£E) 4336 966 - 16 - 5318 10 538
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter BAELEE 1,561 114 151 16 - 1,842 = 1,842
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (ceased to  BRA%A (R-F—+&
beadiectoron 8March 2017)  ZANRFBEFEE) 1858 516 1,106 16 88 434 57 4391
Mr. Sha Yingjie DEREE 83 - - - - 8 35 118
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Chen Shuai REv & - - - - - - - -
Mr. Cao Yonggang ExiLE - - - - - - - -
Mr. Qu Jia BRHELE 9% - - - - 9% 57 151
Independent non-executive BU#HTEE
directors
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 1S 260 - - - - 260 . 260
Ms. Sun Zhil BRELL 260 - - - - 260 - 260
Dr. Cao Guogi [eibichs 260 - - - - 260 - 260
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BEERE 260 - - - - 260 - 260
8972 1,59 1,257 48 838 12,71 159 12,870

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2017: three) are directors whose emoluments are

disclosed in Note 8.

The emoluments in respect of the other two (2017: two)

individuals are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(BRIFZFER TRIUARKZS)

9

REHAL

Ehf&mHFALTH
—tF ZR)BESM

B P FES T BE -

H

“H(ZE
B =

& +F15

BEREMME (ZT—LF :WE)A

TZMEemT:

2018 2017

—2-N\F —TtF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARSFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  # & ZBL R HEWEF 1,894 1,975
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL - 631
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE R 15 -
Share-based payments ELEHENEN = 28
1,909 2,634

The emoluments of the two (2017: two) individuals who
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are within the following

ME(ZF—tF ME)LHFEFH
BRASERLERSFH AL ZERIA

TZHMNFLATEHE:

bands:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
85I A (EDIPN:
RMBNil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZxE AR%1,000,0007T 2 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 ARK#1,500,001 T2 AR
2,000,0007T - 1
L STEEEERERA A
Bt/ -N\EER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 Ht2E W=
Tax effects relating to each component of other HRH b 2 W e & B0 B B 2 TIE &
comprehensive income Z
2018 2017
-N\E “T-tf
Before Net-of- Before Net-of-
tax Tax tax tax Tax tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
BRHEN nk B HE nk
Ex | RERX HESH BiieH A% HEsE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AREFT AREFZ ARETT AREFT  ARETR
(Note 26(b)) (Note 26(b))
(Hiit26(b)) (Kizt26(b))
Surplus on revaluation of landand ~ EfeifEEALIBRET2RA
buildings held for own use (ZH12)
(see Note 12) 93,955 (23,309) 70,646 80,802 (19,928) 60,874
Avallable-for-sale financial assets: net W HESREE:
movement in the fair value reserve A% EREBEEHEE (60,880) 10,120 (50,760) 1212 (1,853) 10,359
Exchange differences on tranlation ~ BEAZFIER 7 EHEH
into presentation currency 20,529 - 20,529 (36,482) - (36,482)
Other comprehensive income EzEka 53,604 (13,189) 40,415 56,532 (21,781) 34,751
There was no reclassification adjustment relating to FATEBEAEMEZERGSHBD 2E
components of other comprehensive income during the FOHERAR(ZE—LF:|) -

year (2017: Nil).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB27,234,000
(2017: loss of RMB352,337,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,313,025,000 ordinary and
convertible preference shares (2017: 2,312,693,000
ordinary and convertible preference shares) in issue
during the year calculated as follows:

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

11 EREA(FH#E)

(a) BREAER (FE)
BREARRM(BE)HE
RARARREELHEFARE
27,234,000 (=& — 4 -
B8 AR #352,337,0007C)
MRARFERNEBEITINEFEY
£02,313,025,000% & @ A% &
BREELER(ZE—tF:
2,312,693,0000% & i@ A% & 7] #2
REER)GFTEWDT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
‘000 ‘000
Fi T
Issued ordinary and convertible REA—B 2B #TEBR &R
preference shares at 1 April AR B SE ik (R HYEEG))
(see Note (i) 2,312,693 2,312,693
Effect of shares issued under share BREBREFEICETRO 2T
option scheme (see Note 25(a)) 2 (ARfit250)) 332 -
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—BzLBR KX AI#H
and convertible preference shares at R B S IR In g T 15 2
31 March (see Note (i) (R HaL()) 2,313,025 2,312,693

Note:

(i) The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation of
basic earnings per share, the convertible preference
shares issued have been included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares in issue.

iz

() FHERRELERSA AGRRA
EBRESA AR Z LR ER
BB/ Dike At St EE
BRERBRFNME  FES T
B A7 A P19 BB 2 AT A RT3
P& S

HAESEREERERD T
—E—+ /-NEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 11 SREAN(F8E) (&)

ERBERAN(FHE)

BREERAN (BB HE
RARFIREREREF AR
27,234,000 ( —E—+tF: 5
1B A R #352,337,0007T) K&
E 15 £12,430,923,0000% & i
B R AT A AR B SRR (B E) (=
T —+4:2,312,693,000%
BREATERRELER (BE))

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b)

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB27,234,000
(2017: loss of RMB352,337,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,430,923,000 ordinary and
convertible preference shares (diluted) (2017:
2,312,693,000 ordinary and convertible preference
shares (diluted)), calculated as follows:

FTEMT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+%F
‘000 ‘000
FR F Az
Weighted average number R=ZA=+—H2EBR KA
of ordinary and convertible MR E R INHE T 8
preference shares at 31 March 2,313,025 2,312,693
Effect of conversion of convertible ERATAKRERR 2 FE
preference shares 117,707 =
Effect of deemed issue of shares WARBE AR R ERET 8%
under the Company'’s share TRz
option schemes 191 =
Weighted average number R=ZA=+—HZ2EBBR KA
of ordinary and convertible B E R INHE T 8
preference shares (diluted) at 31 (#%)
March 2,430,923 2,312,693

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18




(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(BRIFZFER TRIUARKZS)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 N BERERE

Residential
Land and properties
buildings  held for own
held for  use carried
ownuse atcost and Furniture,
carried leasehold ~ fixtures and Motor  Construction
at fair value improvements  equipment vehicles i progress Total
DRE BRATIEREZ
Sk FERRAT
HEER  MEKEE  GECRE
THRETF MEEE B EHTA EEIR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Cost or valuation: RARMEE:
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"ENA—H 2,911,910 483,379 113,464 9,628 7,589 3,525,970
Exchange adjustments I M iR = 36 1,112 22 - 1,170
Reclassification from investment  {EX ENEEFH H 48
property (see Note 13) (ZHe13) 13,800 - - - - 13,800
Additions NE - - 8,507 - 25,663 34,170
Transfer in/(out) A/ (H) 6,280 15,158 = - (21,438) -
Disposals RE - (35,868) (20,444) (2,210) - (58,522)
Surplus on revaluation BitR% (ZHF10)
(see Note 10) 80,802 - - - - 80,802
Less: elimination of accumulated il : E 5 25t E
depreciation (87,082) - - - - (87,082)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—t%
ZA=t—H 2,925,710 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 3,510,308
Representing: .
Cost KA - 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 584,598
Valuation - 31 March 2017 HE-—Z—+&
=A=t-H 2,925,710 - - - - 2,925,710
2,925,710 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 3,510,308
Accumulated depreciation and R TERHEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"ENA—H - 258,174 52,405 7,861 - 318,440
Exchange adjustments A - 21 681 12 - 714
Charge for the year ENE 87,082 35,127 18,611 317 - 141,137
Written back on disposals RENAED - (27,661) (8,933) (2,099) - (38,693)
Elimination on revaluation EffEHE (87,082) - = = = (87,082)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F
=A=1+—H - 265,661 62,764 6,091 - 334,516
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 March 2017 A\ ZE—tF
ZA=1+-H 2,925,710 197,044 39,875 1,349 11,814 3,175,792
L STEEEERERA A
Bt/ -N\EER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 W% BERRE (&)

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

(continued)
Residential
properties
Landand  held for own
buildings ~ use carried
held for ~at cost and Furniture,
own use carried leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
at fair value improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
NWAREDIRZ  WHASIE
BEER (ERGENE  GROZER
1HREF RAENEEE #f ERTE FRIR )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETZ
Cost or valuation: HASMGE:
At 1 April 2017 R-E—+EMA—H 2,925,710 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 3,510,308
Exchange adjustments A% - (49) (1,768) (16) - (1,833)
Reclassification from investment X ENEEHHE
property (see Note 13) (BH#13) 34,100 - - - - 34,100
Additions "E - - 3,136 367 23,370 26,873
Transfer in/{out) g1/ (1) 2,416 29,795 1,690 - (33,901) -
Disposals RE - (11,474) (1,917) (677) - (14,068)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) Ef:Bs (2i#10) 93,955 = = = = 93,955
Less: elimination of accumulated 5 EHE;HHTE
depreciation (91,871) - - - - (91,871)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=+-H 2,964,310 480,977 103,780 7,114 1,283 3,557,464
Representing; &
Cost R - 480,977 103,780 71114 1,283 593,154
Valuation - 31 March 2018 bE-—5-N5=A=1-H 2,964,310 - - - - 2,964,310
2,964,310 480,977 103,780 7,14 1283 3,557,464
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZifiTERAESE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2017 R-E—+ENA—A - 265,661 62,764 6,091 - 334,516
Exchange adjustments 5% - (25) (1,491) (12) = (1,528)
Charge for the year ERfE 91,871 35,515 14,261 N - 141,959
Written back on disposals RERED - (10,378) (1,450) (654) - (12,482)
Elimination on revaluation Bk (91,871) - - - - (91,871)
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\E=A=1-H - 290,773 74,084 5137 - 370,59
Net hook value: REFE:
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\E=A=1-H 2,964,310 190,204 29,696 1371 1283 3,186,870

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017/18



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% BERRE (&)

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and () RAAREBEIRZIBREFR
buildings carried at fair value and REMEZNAETE
investment property
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) AREER

The following table presents the fair value of T&REVNNHE P RILLK

the Group’s land and buildings and investment EUHEEFEZARAEEZ

property measured at the end of the reporting THIREFUARKEDE
period on a recurring basis, categorised into ZAnBE BBZARE
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined EM=BoREE(RLE

in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The 7S B 7% ¥R 45 ZE B 551358

level into which a fair value measurement is [ ARBEFEIZER)D

classified is determined with reference to the BB ARBENENEZ

observability and significance of the inputs ERTDB2ENTHERE

used in the valuation technique as follows: FT Ao A SR 2 AT 852 1t
rEBURETE:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured e E—RHE:EFEHA
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted F— R ABE (A
quoted prices in active markets for RetEARBEES
identical assets or liabilities at the BERERMS 2R
measurement date. RAEREBE)FEZ

NRfE.

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured e ZE_RHEE:ERE
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable R ABRE (AR
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and BEERE R 2B
not using significant unobservable inputs. g A SR Bk
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which FREATABRE
market data are not available. ABEBEFEZARN

B TR HR@ A
BREMSEERREME
2B ABIE -

e  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured e FE=ARMHE:EAE
using significant unobservable inputs. A AL B R ) A BUR

ATEZARE-

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 2
PEAE_R/ZDAAEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

Recurring fair value RMB’000 RMB’000

measurements BEMDAARETE AR¥TFRT ARKFIT

Land and buildings held for own #{E8 B 2 i RiEF

use 2,964,310 2,925,710
Investment property (see Note 13) & &EWMZE(ZH7F13) 1,332,600 1,366,500
L STEEEERERA A

=2—t /-N\FER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there
was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2017: no
transfer). The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s land and buildings carried
at fair value and investment property were
revalued as at 31 March 2018. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyor, Roma Appraisals Limited, who has
among their staff fellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being
valued. The Company’s Financial Controller has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of land and buildings carried
at fair value and investment property located
in the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square meter basis using market data
which is publicly available.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

12 % -BERRE (&

(a)

BRAREBEIRZIHEREFTR

REMEZAARERNE (F)

(i)

(i)

ARBEER (&)
2T — N\NF = H
=+—RALEFE UWESE
—ARELEE AR 2 BB R K
BAFEBRE=H(=ZF
—tF - EEE) A&KH
ZBUR BB Y 3R
LHRERRAABEBRS
DAz B o

NEBABZRAREYE
ZTHEREFUARESE
MER_-_Z—NF=A
=t+—HRETEMRB-BE
HEm—RBE A ST
EEEEFHEERA A
(BBl EmEeres
WEAERSHEDEMRE
& ¥ ¥R R 2R B E
RER)VEIT - RNERHNE
EseE B BT HER
PN/NIC] Doy e
EMTmEREERR
HEER-

B-RAREFEHER
Z 5B T 5 R A B 15
R EzERAESR
ZEIWREBFARKEY
XZRArEEAMSBLEER
FEE CHE2EAM#IL
BMEREG VT AEBRE
EERRFRAZTHHE
BRFEOHER-



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(BRIFZFER TRIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 E-BERREE (&)

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and (a) RAABEIRZIHEEFR
buildings carried at fair value and RENEZDREE (&)
investment property (continued)

(iii) Depreciated cost of land and buildings (iii) URAREFIRZEFEEA
held for own use carried at fair value T REFIHEKAK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFIT
Had the revalued land and AR R EPIER 2 E il i
buildings carried at fair value MEFURAR RHiTE
been carried at cost less KRB BB R - BREE
accumulated depreciation and &
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been 1,667,947 1,682,468
(b) Title ownership (b) XREmERE

As at the date of this report, the Group was
in the progress of applying for registration of
the ownership certificates for certain of its
properties. The aggregate carrying value of such
properties as at 31 March 2018 was approximately
RMB27,408,000. The directors are of the opinion
the Group is entitled to lawfully own and occupy
these properties.

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

RAFREBH AEEBEEAR
HETMERBELMAESE
E ZEMER_T—N\FE=A
=+t RAZBEEEANARE
27,408,000 EER B AL
EEEAEZERARERBZED
%o

13 REYE

2018 2017
—B-\F —T+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Valuation: fhiE :

At 1 April REA—H

Reclassification to property, plant and EEHHEEYE  WE KRG
equipment (see Note 12) (EHaF12)

Fair value adjustments N EFHE

At 31 March R=ZA=+—H

1,366,500 1,380,300
(34,100) (13,800)
200 =
1,332,600 1,366,500
HESEHEERERAA

-t/ -N\EEFERH
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

14 BEREE

Trademark-
use-right
B A
RMB’000
ARKF T
Cost: A
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and RZE—RFOA—HB ZT—tF
31 March 2018 —A=+—HBRZZE—N\F
=A=+—H 424,812
Accumulated impairment losses: ZETREBE -
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and RZFBE—-RNFEA—B - ZF—tF
31 March 2018 =R=+—HERZZ—NF
=—A=+—8H =
Carrying amount: FREIE :
At 31 March 2017 and 2018 RZEB—L+FR_FT—)\F
=A=+—H 424,812

The Group’s trademark-use-right represents the Group’s
use of the trademark “Ginwa” which the Group has
acquired through its acquisitions of department store and
supermarket operations in prior years.

AEBZRHEEAEEASE®HGT
[EfE] 2 ERE ERBEFREEBR
Wi B ERS MBATISEFES -

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
RMB’000
ARKF T
Cost: A
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and RZE-—RFEA—R ZT—+tF
31 March 2018 —A=+—HBRZZ—N\F
- —— 1,451,814
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEREEE
At 1 April 2016 RZT—RFEA—H 290,647
Impairment losses VEREY SEi! 273,016
At 31 March 2017 and 2018 R-B—tFR-_FB-N\F
=RA=+—H 563,663
Carrying amount: FREIE :
At 31 March 2017 and 2018 RIB—+FR_F-N\F
=RA=+—H 888,151

1 62 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units identified according to the department store and
supermarket operations acquired as follows:

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

BE(#)
BEREBCREELEMZRER
=S
BERBAOTAKEZBE®S LS
BMSEBAEEANEEZERAIR
TEEEM:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TF T ARKTFT
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. LS ERDBRAF]

(“Ginwa Bell Tower") ([&TEEE]) 515,069 515,069

Golden Chance (Xian) Limited Golden Chance (Xian) Limited
("GCX") (feex) 150,264 150,264
Ideal Mix Limited |deal Mix Limited 222,818 222,818
888,151 888,151

Note:

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.
These cash flow projections adopted annual sales growth rates
ranging from 1% to 6% (2017: from 0% to 6%), which are
based on the Group’s historical experience with these operations
and adjusted for other factors that are specific to each cash-
generating unit. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3% (2017:
3%). The cash flows are discounted using discount rate of 16%
(2017: 14%). The discount rates used are pre-taxed and reflect
specific risks relating to the respective cash-generating units.
Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the calculation
of recoverable amount of cash-generating units would result in
further impairment losses.

Wit -

R & E A B R A U el B iR AEE
TEmMEE - BETENEAREERE
HENTFHEMEEEREENES
METER ZEREREFERIRIBEASE
ERZSER RSB RAFHER
RE1%Z26% (ZE—tEF:0%%£6%)
EITHE IS —EARSELENET
ZEMAZAE - BBRAFTHEZEER
EFERAGEFINETFHHEERRERI% (=
T—tF:3%)ETHE -HEREHA
BhIRE16% (ZZF — £ F :14% ) #1785
o pTE AR K BRI K B
HERBSELCBMNABZETERR T8
IR < B HE B v A AT UK [] < BE B AT 4 AR R R
WERAF S S G ELE— T REBE-

HESEHEERERAA
=2—t /-N\FER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REKNE QT
The following list contains only the particulars of TEEHNTESEAEB/ELE B
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets ESaE T HEASE.

or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERZLY
Place of The
establishment Particulars of Group's Held Held
and registered and effective by the by
Name of companies operations paid up capital interest  Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
RSB
NRER RIREXHE EEMRBRRAER BEREL mALAKA ANELTRAE TEXH
Ginwa Bell Tower* The PRC RMB ARE 83.88% - 83.88% Operation of department
BIEER P 235,500,0007C store
Bersns
Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping ~ The PRC RMB ARE 100% - 100% Operation of department
Mall Company Limited* (Note (i) # Bl 50,000,0007C store
EREESBABRENDL BeRremSs
BRRA (M)
Shaanxi Century Ginwa Tangrenjie  The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of department
Shopping Mall Company Limited* 20,000,0007¢ store
(Note (ii)) LERERS
RELRSTEAGES
BREMAR (M)
Xi'an Century Ginwa Nandajie The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of department
Shopping Mall Company Limited* & 5,000,000 store
BRtReEEAERITLAR BeRsHs
NS
Xi‘an Century Ginwa Saigo The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of department
Shopping Mall Company Limited* H 30,000,0007% store
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%%%% REBEHS
NG
Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall - The PRC HK$65,000,0007 70 100% - 100% Operation of department
Company Limited* i store
ARt R EEENERAR Rensns
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and  The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of department
Commerce Company Limited* H 3,000,000t stores and supermarkets
REEEeEAEARAR BERERERBRTS
Xi'an Yixin Property Management  The PRC RMB AR 100% = 100% Properties management
Company Limited* f 536,885,7507C NEER
BRERNEERARAA
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties The PRC RMB ARE 100% - 100% Operation of shopping
Company Limited* i 252,800,0007% mall and properties
RETEZZERAR management
BEBEMPLRNEER
Xi'an Honghui Property The PRC RMB AR 100% = 100% Properties management
Management Company Limited* 124,000,0007C NEER
AR EENFERARAR

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMEBRE (&)

(continued)

i3 The English translation of the names of these companies are 2 RERNAZHEXELERBRE ZF
for reference only. The official names of these companies are Rz ERBEHUAX B
in Chinese.

Notes: fifaE -

(i) The subsidiary has ceased operation on 1 August 2016 (i) EZWEQETEHE(\?‘“%iﬁTEEF
due to unsatisfactory operational results. —ET-R"ENA—HELL g

(i)  The subsidiary has ceased operation on 31 January 2018 (il ZMBRRABEREEXEETEER
due to unsatisfactory operational results. 2 N\F-A=+—HBEFLE

g o

The following table lists out the information relating to Ginwa TREFANEEME—FEEEAERERE

Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group which has material ([3EERRER]) B AR EEESR

non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial BBk T2 2 W BERBEEL

information presented below represents the amounts before any RAANERNARIREEE &5 -

inter-company elimination.

2018 2017
—®-N\E —B-t7F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FRT ARETT

Revenue Wz 339,112 309,237
(Loss)/profit for the year REFE(EIR), /% H (22,244) 14,835

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable & A FEFEARERS FE(G (E51B)

to NCI Y ) (3,586) 2,391
Non-current assets EREEE 1,617,136 1,456,303
Current assets MBEE 732,270 1,043,294
Current liabilities mENAE (1,491,845) (1,574,962)
Non-current liabilities EREEE - (1,477)
Net assets BESEE 857,561 923,158
Net assets attributable to NCI RS R S R (G B R R 138,239 148,813
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF

17 WEBYEZFEARIE

PROPERTIES

RMB’'000
ARETFT
At 1 April 2016 RZFE—XR"FHEA—A 727,023
Additions A0 126,000
Interest expense capitalised EENMEF BFEX 26,704

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+F=A=+—HK
—E—+FPWA—H 879,727
Additions 0 206,000
Interest expense capitalised BB E R 53,333
At 31 March 2018 R—E—N\F=A=+—H 1,139,060

The amounts represent partial payments made by
the Group for its intended acquisition of commercial
properties under development that are situated in the
PRC. On 4 December 2014, the Group, through Ginwa
Bell Tower, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Shanghai Huade Investment Company Limited (“Huade
Investment”), pursuant to which Huade Investment
agreed to procure a project company to develop the
above properties in accordance with the requirements
of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed to
purchase part of the above properties for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,651,112,750. The substantial
construction of the commercial properties commenced
in October 2016. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
a scheduled payment of RMB200,000,000 was made to
Huade Investment by the Group. These properties are
intended to be used by the Group to expand its retail
operations.

ZHRBEEAEERBBLARPRHZ
EREBEMEMEL 2O FR R
—E-ME+-AMAB AEBREB
CIEREE FBEEERERRAR
([TEEZE D) T W - Bt
EEKERERFEEE ARIRESIE
EEERAR LME mMetER
B EABREARE651,112,750
THEEH, LW E -EHEYDENE
BEIRR-_ZE—"F+AEH -E=
—E-NE=A=t+—BLEE" K
EEEAENTEERENRARE
200,000,0007T ° ;2 ¥ ¥ it A EE
FARERSEERKEE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(BRIFZFER TRIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 AHtHEESMEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Sl
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Available-for-sale equity securities At SRS ES (B H )

(see Note (i)
Available-for-sale securities Al B E TS (M)
(see Note (ii)

Less: current portion of available-for-  J& : At & &5 7 BIEAE 9

sale securities (see Note 19) (2 HtaE19)

Notes:

(i)  The available-for-sale equity securities represent the
30,000,000 A-shares in Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc., a
company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange (“Ginwa
Enterprise A-Shares”).

As at 31 March 2018, these available-for-sale equity
securities were pledged to secure one of the Group’'s
short-term bank and other loans (see Notes 24(a) and
24(c)).

(i) These securities represent a two-year term investment in
subordinate trust units with no guarantee of principal or
returns, which will be matured in September 2018.

Wit

(ii)

296,400 347,400

10,332 20,212
306,732 367,612
(10,332) =
296,400 367,612

AJ 4 & 25 75 5 $530,000,0008%
X (EE)BRMBRAR (—
MR EEBER S LMz AR) K
([SIELEAR]) -

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8" L
AEEEESEFGIERAASARE
BzEARTREMEREER
( B HfsE24(a) 2 24(c)) °

ZEEBAER TREA S E HA
REGTEMHOMFLRE  Hi§
R-ZZE-N\FNLAZH-

HAESEREERERD T
—E—+ /-NEFR
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—Z—\F=H=+—
(BRIFSHEIEHR -

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

19 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

B IFFE
BRIUAREZ3)

19 EHEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Frx ARMFT
Investments in debt securities with REBBR=E R A ERES
original maturity within three months  $&& ( & 5#3522(a))
(see Note 22(a)) 150,429 150,274
Add: current portion of available-for- i : At B EE % 2 BNEAERD
sale securities (see Note 18(ii)) (B K& 18(ii) 10,332 =
160,761 150,274

The debt securities represent wealth management
products issued by financial institutions in the PRC with
guaranteed principal amounts plus fixed or variable
returns, and are recognised in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(g) and 2(o).

ERELFIERPHSREERETZR
REANE HN b [E TE sk A] & Bl iR 2 IR EE
oo - WARHR MY 5E2(g) K 2(0) P& & 511K
R AMER -

A

20 INVENTORIES 20 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F T tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Merchandises ol 69,779 72,034
Low value consumables RESFESR 3,720 4,118
73,499 76,152

An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

BERASAXLIAGEBERZFE

expense and included in the consolidated statement of RIESFTOT
profit or loss is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARKF T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 557,206 498,179

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

21 AR K H ith FE WK

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Trade receivables from third parties U E=HER(EHNE213))
(see Note 21(a)) 43,575 25,370
Amounts due from related parties UL B A\ TFIA(ZHE21(0b))
(see Note 21(b)) 1,615 15,960
Prepayments, deposits and other FARTROE - R E RH A UK
receivables:
— Value added tax refundable — AR IR ER 36,497 68,075
— Receivables from third parties —EWE = FIB(AME21(c))
(see Note 21(c)) 240,703 367,853
— Prepayments and deposits for —REME 2 BANRIBRIES
operating leases 4,390 5,413
— Others —EAfb 25,190 23,536
306,780 464,877
351,970 506,207

Except for deposits of RMB1,758,000 (2017:
RMB2,958,000), all of the trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses

within one year.

Details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note

28(a).

Yo [ml s iR A S th e

Bize ARM1,758,0000T (ZF—+
£ AR 2, 958,0007T )51 BT B fE
g BR 3 K E i FE W SR FEHR ISR — A

AEBZEEBRRFBH LK
28(a) °

HAESEREERERD T
—E—+ /-NEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
with the following ageing analysis (based on the
invoice date) as of the end of the reporting period:

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

21 BURR R HEMEWRR (a)

(a)

BREE 2 47
S 8 U B 2 L A R
PR BE 2K (B 315 REE B IE ) 1
s HIR 2 B ST (JRB =P
H)mT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt AR T

Less than 1 month LHR—1E A 20,399 14,485
More than 1 month but less than —EBAXNEELR=MEA

3 months 6,607 7,503

More than 3 months =@EA N E 16,569 3,382

43,575 25,370

Trade receivables from third parties relate to credit
card centres owned by financial institutions and
tenants operating in the Group’s department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets for whom
there were no recent history of default and have
a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Amounts due from related parties

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Receivables from third parties

Included in the balance are receivables of
RMB224,514,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017:
RMB305,168,000) due from a third party which
provides services in managing the Group’s customer
loyalty programme, and the sale and usage of
customers’ prepaid cards within the Group’s
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets
(hereinafter referred to as the “Prepaid Card
Management Company”).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18

(b)

(c)

FEHR 53 =77 PR B BA TSt 1 R
BZERRTPLERAEERE
Bi% By O RBRT SRS
ZHEFPER mZERERERP
W ST R ARk B RS E
BRIFZ EERE RBBEL
o EEEBHEETRREEH
ERERE RAREEERYL
BB AN KR BB 28
Y B o 7R &2 (B30 M8t % 5 A AR HT
BEMAEMRR -

FEWBAE A T FKIE
FEM B E A LRI REEAR 2
B e 3 4 [ T A8 R o

EWE=HE
R—_ZE—NF=ZHF=+—
B EBERE=ZFREBEARE
224,514,000 (Z T —+F:
A K #305,168,0007T) 2 5t A
B RE=ZH (UTEEA
(AR REERR]) AEAEER
BEEFAHEE REERS:
BYh O RBRTISNEE RE
BRFEMNFRHEERS



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND 22 ROTEFRFERSE
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () ReRARELEEEE:
2018 2017
—BE-NE —_ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand in the REITEARRRIA N RI T4

consolidated statement NFERS
of financial position 614,681 512,697
Add: short-term investments with  fi : REHIBA=EBURZ
original maturity within three RENRE (A HEE19)
months (see Note 19) 150,429 150,274
Less: restricted cash at bank B SRITPRIBE (EMTEE>)
(see Note (i) (294,541) (287,915)
Cash and cash equivalents in the rEReRERZEAESAES
consolidated cash flow statement ZEIEH 470,569 375,056
Note: it &t
(i)  Restricted cash at bank at 31 March 2018 i) RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—A0H
represented bank deposits of RMB286,000,000 SRRHIERITIR & BRSNS
(2017: RMB275,000,000) pledged to secure the ERTERMERNRITER
Group’s bank loans (see Note 24(c)), bank deposits A R #286,000,0007T (=&
of RMB6,241,000 sealed up by courts as a result of —+tF: AR%275,000,000
legal proceedings against the Group’s subsidiaries go) (REIFE24(c)) « A&t
and bank deposits of RMB2,300,000 pledged to a AEEWBRARRERER
bank for the performance guarantee in relation to a i #5% Br & £ # R 1T FE A
sales contract. R #6,241,000t R BT A
- IHHEE S NERME
ATRITVRIOTERARE
2,300,0007T °
The Group's operations of department stores, AEERGTEBERES BY
shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC are RO REBR ISR EERTIAA
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible REE#ET AREBRIFEHRER
currency and the remittance of RMB out of f"iﬁg WA R ERHE R AR
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules PE KB X H B 28 5 89 & R S
and regulations of foreign exchange control EE%‘J%EE'J&%EW'JFHEBE
promulgated by the PRC government.
S BEEZRERA A
=2—t /-N\FER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 22 ST&#ERFEEE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) METHELEZEBZHER

financing activities

Payables
for
Bank Other interest
loans loans expenses Total
BRI
RITER HHEX ER Azt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBFT AREFIT ARKFT

(Note 24)  (Note 24)  (Note 23)

(Hizt24)  (HizE24)  (KfzE23)

At 1 April 2017 R=-Z-—tFHWA-H 2,246,874 210,000 21,001 2,477,875

Changes from financing MERSRELD

cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans #7148 17 & & 1S 708 281,097 - - 281,097
Proceeds from new other loans #73% H 1 & FFr15 7018 - 142,176 - 142,176
Repayment of bank loans BEPBITER (419,816) = - (419,816)
Repayment of other loans EBEHMWEDR - (117,000) - (117,000)
Other finance costs paid H 4B gl & p A - - (151,569) (151,569)

Total changes from financing BER &R EE%E

cash flows (138,719) 25,176 (151,569)  (265,112)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (10,182) - (34)  (10,216)
Other changes: Hitp 25 :

Interest expenses (Note 6(a) M EFx (Kfzt6(a)) - - 97,917 97,917
Capitalised borrowing costs ~ BAR{LEE R A (FT:F6(a))

(Note 6(a)) = = 53,333 53,333
Total other changes Hih )@ - - 151,250 151,250
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-N\F

=A=+—H 2,097,973 235,176 20,648 2,353,797

1 72 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

23 BB RRFR H 4th FE Y 5K

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Fr AREF T
Trade payables arising from: ENBRRER NEEES
— Concession sales — T EEHEE 704,058 538,005
— Purchase of inventories —BERFE 84,140 71,763
788,198 609,768
Amounts due to related parties FESREE A T FZIE(ZHTEEG))
(see Note (i) 35,941 2,682
Other payables and accrued expenses:  HfhEN K R ESH B :
— Payables for staff related costs —ENZETITHRBEER 26,222 26,211
— Payables for miscellaneous taxes — TR 5,780 9,087
— Payables for interest expenses —EMF SR 20,648 21,001
— Payables for handling charges to the —ENFENMFEEQ A2 EIE
Prepaid Card Management Company = ¢a3! 6,557 5,940
— Payables for operating leases —EKgEREE 61,959 98,537
— Deposits from concessionaries and —BRER N ERIRE
customers 33,418 34,360
— Dividends payables —ERIRE 5,548 5,752
— Others —HAb 56,359 51,578
216,491 252,466
Financial liabilities measured at NEHEA AT E 2 2B AR
amortised cost 1,040,630 864,916
Deferred income EEIT A 8,264 13,540
Receipts in advance TEMFRIE 46,423 62,475
1,095,317 940,931

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on

demand.

P FEAS AR R B L At 8 A5 SR TR S
KR —FREERER SR EX
FWA KB R RIRBEREE

HAESEREERERD T
—E—+ /-NEFR

173

y



N

174
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Note:

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables
with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity
date) as of the end of the reporting period:

23

BARAREMENSRK (&)
i aE -

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ % B R

() &FRE
e

BRiR 2

At AREAT AR R B H A FE A SR 2 FE A B
RN ERARZ R (REHH)
mT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Due within one month or on demand R —1#& A X 5| B 5k 3% 2 sk i 57+t 788,198 609,768

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 24 RITREMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans (a) AEEZERHETREMER
are analysed as follows: ST :
2018 2017
—B-NF ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Bank loans: RITER
— secured by Group’s bank deposits — A& B4R 1717 FUHE R K /i
and guaranteed by the Company KA BER 223,248 238,249

— guaranteed by subsidiaries of the —HZANEEN B A AN 84K
Group, and/or the Company and a A= MARF —HESER

director of the Company - 100,000
— guaranteed by the Company —BARRBER 208,725 150,875
431,973 489,124
Other loans: HMERK
- secured by the Group’s furniture, — BHARNEBRM 2 E N RME
fixtures and equipment and W RAARR  NAF)—
guaranteed by the Company, a HES AEEZKERA

director of the Company, ultimate &) 2 N5 B [} B A B HE(R

holding company and subsidiaries

of the Group 50,000 =
— secured by future income right and — g5 & 2R I A R FI| % 28 &= E A

equity interests in a subsidiary of BT B /A ] B AR A 4 R

the Group 20,000 _
— secured by the Group’s available- —@AREFERIHEERZSES

for-sale equity securities W (BHFE24(0)

(see Note 24(c)) 125,000 210,000

— secured by future income right and — g5 7k 38 Uz A 4 1) #E $8 K2 7K 22
guaranteed by the Company and a FRAQNF—LZBHER
director of the Company 40,176 =

235,176 210,000

Add: current portion of long-term 0 : KHIEE1TE 2 BVHAED
bank loans (see Note 24(b)) 0 (R HaE24(b)) 125,000 91,750

792,149 790,874
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 24 BITRHEHMER (&
(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed (b) Z&EEzRHETER NN
as follows: T :
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Secured by the Group’s investment HANEEIKEYE - i M IE

property and land and buildings FHEA 335,000 363,750
Secured by the Group’s bank BAEBRITERR St

deposits and/or land and REFEM WHARRA R

buildings and guaranteed by the SERARNB—BEEN 5K

Company and/or a director of NE B A B R

the Company and/or subsidiaries

of the Group 1,331,000 1,394,000

1,666,000 1,757,750

Less: current portion of long-term & : RHEIERITE 2 BNHAER

bank loans (see Note 24(a)) 0 (R Hfat24(a) (125,000) (91,750)

1,541,000 1,666,000

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as REBEZ RBRITEFER T
follows: HAfE (B2 -

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMFT ARETT

Within 1 year — &R 125,000 91,750
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFRA 227,750 125,000
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZEBERFEAN 1,155,250 1,244,250
After 5 years HF% 158,000 296,750
1,666,000 1,757,750
All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans P A JERNHAGT RIRITE R
are carried at amortised cost. None of the non- SHRC AN ABR - LM IE RN BAET 2R
current interest-bearing bank loans is expected to TERBHRER —FREE-

be settled within one year.

1 7 6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The following assets and their respective
carrying values as at the end of the reporting
period are pledged to secure the Group’s bank
and other loans:

(BrIF=BEH

BAIAAREZ5)

24 RITRHEMER (4)

(c)

THEEREEHZREBERE
BEHRESWERUMERETEE
ZBRITRAMER 2R

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARKTFT

Property, plant and equipment e R INE L] 1,918,057 1,829,094

Investment property REME 1,332,600 1,366,500
Available-for-sale equity securities A fit &R BH(EHT:E18)

(see Note 18) 296,400 347,400

Cash at bank (see Note 22(a)(i) RITEETF (R M E22(a)() 286,000 275,000

3,833,057 3,817,994

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the loan would become repayable on
demand. At 31 March 2018, none of the covenants
relating to the bank and other loans had been
breached.

At 31 March 2018, the Group's banking
facilities amounted to RMB500,000,000 (2017:
RMB500,000,000) were utilised to the extent of
RMB208,725,000 (2017: RMB150,875,000).

(d)

(e)

AEEETRITREMERE]
REE HM%T%ZTMQTJFEPZ%
E L5 o fin AN R E I s
ARG EKARBREE -V _’2
—/\E A=+—8" ﬁ%fﬁz_&

BRARITREMERNRZE -
R—ZF—NF=A=+—H"
AEBEHNRITEEARE

500,000,0007C (=& —t 4 :
A R #500,000,0007T) F E 8
A AR #208,725,0007T (=&
—+&F: AR# 150,875,000
JL) °

HAESEREERERD T
—E—+ /-NEFR

1717

Yy



N

178
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 EREEEUROGIT2ZRS

TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share option scheme (a) BREE

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees and service providers
of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up share options at HK$1
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.
For the share options granted in 2011, 6,975,000
share options will vest immediately from the date
of grant, and for the remaining 37,050,000 share
options, 50% will vest after one year from the date
of grant, another 30% will vest after two years
from the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will
vest after three years from the date of grant. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.96
each, and is settled gross in shares. The share
options granted in 2011 have lapsed on 20 October
2017.

On 28 May 2013, 67,105,000 share options were
granted to directors of the Company and employees
of the Group under the above share option scheme.
Of the share options granted, 50% will vest one
year from the date of grant, 30% will vest two years
from the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will
vest three years from the date of grant. The share
options granted will lapse on 28 May 2019. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.73
each, and is settled gross in shares.

On 30 May 2013, in order to comply with the
Listing Rules, 4,750,000 of the share options
granted to certain directors of the Company on 28
May 2013 were cancelled, and the Company has
replaced them with the granting of 2,300,000 share
options to these directors. Of the share options
granted, 50% will vest one year from the date of
grant, 30% will vest two years from the date of
grant, and the remaining 20% will vest three years
from the date of grant. The share options granted
will lapse on 30 May 2019. Each share option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company at HK$1.76 each, and is
settled gross in shares.

KARERNZZE——F_A+H
BERMBIRESTE Bt AR
AESERENEREEER
REBZIRBHESE (BEASE
EERKBEARES)RIBT
BRI RBE A AR T BRRG 2
ERE-R-_E——FFHZ
BAHEM 5 © 6,975,00017 & Ik
EHeaREBHRENITERE
i gk 88 T37,050,00017 B A HE M
T E¥HEEea R AEE—
FHREB BINB0%EEARTE
HEAREMFETB £ T20% 5
CERHBPE=FEREE - T
MIBRER TREANTUANER
1.968 TREARA AR —RER
AR - WIARD Z B L E 2 #E
FeRZT——FRH 2 BARE
ER=—_ZE—t&+A=-+HX
R o

R-ZE—=FRA=-+/\H &
% AR AERT B AR AR
767,105,000 B& I T KA &)
EERAEEREE -BHZER
R 50% 8RB R E BB
FEEE 30%EREREBEH
EREREER  LARBRT20%1
RNEHBHE=FREE -FLH
CEBREER-_Z—NLERA
—+NABRM - FEKRER T
BB AR AE.738 TR —
R A A B E BAR AR (D - I LARR 1D
EEEE R -

R-ZE—=%FRA=+8H" 4
FAEEMBAN R-_ZT—=F
AA-+NEBERFETARAA
BT E 74,750,0001D BE X HE D 5%
e ARBINMERMZSEESEE
2,300,00017 B f i LA BR R 5% &5
BEARHE - R Z BB R » 50%
BEREREBHE—FERE -
30% R B H BB FE %
BB AR T 20% BRI B
R =ZFREE - R 2B
BR-_ZE—NAFRA=+H%
o D BEIER T8 AR
FH1.768 TTREBE—RAQ AT
B WA 2 EEE

TR o
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B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continued)

On 27 September 2017, 44,000,000 share options
were granted to service providers of the Group
under 2011 Share Option Scheme. The share
options do not have a vesting condition and are
exercisable within a period of two years. Each share
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company at HK$0.32

each, and is settled gross in shares.

(i) The terms and conditions of the options

granted are as follows:

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

25 BREGEURO T ZX

Z (&)

(a) EBRESE (&)
R-_E—+tFhLA=-1++H"
44,000,000 R ERE-Z
—— FEREFERTAEE
RIS IEE - SRR E W &
FBIGEHRTAMEEBMATT
- FHBIRERTHE AT
BIR0.32BTREANE) — Y
B WA 2 EEE

R

() SRUEBREZGRIARMK

T

Number of Contractual life of
instruments  Vesting conditions share options
TAHE BRHK4 BREGHES
Share options granted to
directors:
RTEESCBRE:
- on 20 October 2011 5,312,500  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZB——%+TAZTH BRLBHE—F N
- on 20 October 2011 3,187,500  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZF——%+TAZ=tH BT B HEmE NE
- on 20 October 2011 2,125,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZB——%+tAZTH BRLBHE=F NE
-on 28 May 2013 5,250,000  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRAZ1T\H BRHAHE—F NE
- on 28 May 2013 3,150,000  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
“T-=FRAZT+NH BB HEmE NE
-on 28 May 2013 2,100,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZB-=FRA=1+N\H BREBHR=F NE
-on 30 May 2013 1,150,000  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRhA=1H BRLBHE—F ~
-on 30 May 2013 690,000  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZB-=FRA=1H BREBHEMmF NE
-on 30 May 2013 460,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=5hA=1H BRLBHE=F NE
HESTEHEERERAT
—2—t /- N\FER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Share option scheme (continued)

(i) The terms and conditions of the options

granted are as follows: (continued)

25 BRBAELRA LN 2R

2 (%)

(a) BREE(£)
(i) ERHEBREZHKARKE
BT (48)

Number of Contractual life of
instruments  Vesting conditions share options
IEYE HRHEH BRESHEH
Share options granted to
employees and service
providers:
RYEERBBHEE 2 BRE:
—on 20 October 2011 6,975,000  No vesting condition 6 years
-RZE——%+TA=-1H 3 2 55 8 1A NE
- on 20 October 2011 13,212,500  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——+AZTH BELABHE—F NE
- on 20 October 2011 7,927,500  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——%+TAZ-1H BB HEmE NE
- on 20 October 2011 5,285,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——+AZTH BEHAHE=F NE
-on 28 May 2013 25,927,500  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRAZTN\H BERHEBHE—F NE
-on 28 May 2013 15,556,500  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRA=1/\H B B HR R E NE
-on 28 May 2013 10,371,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-ZFRAZTNA BRIEBHE=F NE
- on 27 September 2017 44,000,000  No vesting condition 2 years
-RZZ—tFNAAZTLH W 5 B A 1T 2
Total share options granted 152,680,000
ERILBRIEES
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B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RRELGEURDINZR
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 7 (&)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BRESE (&)
(ii) The number and weighted average (i) BREZHEBRMNEEH
exercise price of share options are as TEEMT:
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —E—tF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of share price of share
HKS$ options HK$ options
mELY INHEF
TEE ]
B  BREZE BT BREHE
Outstanding at the beginning  FAF 4] i & 178
of the year 1.823 85,380,000 1.594 152,150,000
Granted during the year FARL 0.320 44,000,000 - -
Exercised during the year FRTE 0.320  (11,000,000) - =
Forfeited during the year FRR 1.787  (13,150,000) 1.809 (7,300,000)
Expired during the year R B 1960 (31,0250000  1.240  (59,470,000)
Outstanding at the end of the FAF K # K171
year 1.103 74,205,000 1.823 85,380,000
Exercisable at the end of the &R /HIRA] F17{F
year 1.103 74,205,000 1.823 85,380,000

The weighted average share price at the date
of exercise for share options exercised during
the year ended 31 March 2018 was HK$0.44
(2017: not applicable).

The share options outstanding at 31 March
2018 had a weighted average exercise price of
HK$1.103 (2017: HK$1.823) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.3 years
(2017: 1.5 years).

REE-_T—N\F=ZA=+—H
IEFERATEBRERITE
H 8 2 i F R (E R0.445 7T
(ZZE—+tF:F@EA) -

RZE—N\F=A=+—HHEX
TP RE 2 METITEE R
1103t (Z T —t4:1.823
BIT) RINEF BT EHTH
BI3FE(ZEBE—+F:155F)o

HAESEREERERD T
—E—+ /-NEFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Share option scheme (continued)

(iii) Fair value of share options and

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

25 BREGEUROD T 2R
2 (%)
(a) BRAESE (&)
(i) RA=FT—tFAA=T<t

assumptions for share options granted on
27 September 2017

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based on
the Black-Scholes Model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the model.

ARHBEREZARER
BREZBRR

VAR H B8 s 1 70 BM 9 P
WEBRREZARE 32
R L BRE 2 RAE
MmetE-FAREBREZ
NAEZEEFTREM K
R—HHMBHRAFE-
BhEZANFHIAE
AR 2 8 ABUE - H 12
BIIEZBBAARNER
ZAe

Share options
granted on 27
September 2017

R=-B—tF

AA=t+tH

BREZERE
Fair value of share options and BREZAAERER

assumptions
Fair value at measurement date RetE2RBIZARME HK$0.084
Share price ] HK$0.285
Exercise price 1IE(E HK$0.320
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted — FEHBRIR(R R AM A — SR B HTE

average volatility used in the modelling NI TEEER 2 TR E)

under the Black-Scholes Model) 60.575%
Option life (expressed as weighted average B4 HA (R A — BRI HTIE

life used in the modelling under the Black-  Z\J8 N 2R 2 T FEH)

Scholes Model) 2 years
Expected dividends HHREX 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on the Hong  EEMF|R (REBIINEEEEE

Kong Exchange Fund Notes) &TE) 1.345%

The expected volatility is based on the
historical volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

T BRI o LA IR BE AR i 2
IHEFHFBRERFEZ
JE SEORhE A A WL IR
RFEMEEME ZEM
B HA A 182 % a2 ) 1F 1 58
B FA MR JI AR £ B
Bt HE - EH I ARKD
ZieAI e N A EfERTE
EERTE-
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B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BBREEZEURDZF2ZR

TRANSACTIONS (continued) 2 (&)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BERESE (&)
(iii) Fair value of share options and (i) A=Z2—tFhLA=1t

assumptions for share options granted on BREBREZAAER
27 September 2017 (continued) BREZBR (&)
Share options were granted either with or i PR 1 T AR 4R PR 7S M 1 4%
without a service condition. This condition, etk & (B ) REFE
if any, has not been taken into account in FTUER AR SRR BB 2
the grant date fair value measurement of AREREAREEN -
the services received. There were no market Lt B A A 30 A BT 75 T 9% 16
conditions associated with the share options o
granted.

(b) Share award scheme (b) MRfpEREETE

On 17 October 2014 (the “Adoption Date”), the
directors of the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a mean of
rewarding and retaining employees of the Group
and certain eligible participants and to attract
suitable personnel for further development with the
Group. A trust has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and
to hold such shares until they are vested.

R-ZZF-—HE+TA+EE (&
MBEH]) NRAREFRARND
B ET 8 (TR D EER T &8 ) 1k
REBEGEAEEE T RET
BERSEE W RANEEE—
FERBSIBBEATL - ARFIE
FXAZASRELAE IR AR 1 22 Bh 5t &

RIERAD B2 BT &) - (= FE AT B
RAAEB R EBER
NEED TRHAEZEREEE

HORE-

HAESEREERERD T
—E—+ /-NEFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

25 EREEEUROGIF 2R
= (&)

(b) RUDRBEFE (&)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued)

The directors of the Company may, from time to
time, at its sole and absolute discretion, select any
employee of the Group and eligible participants
including suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers and other service providers (other than
those specifically excluded as stated in the Share
Award Scheme) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and grant such number of awarded shares
to any selected employee of the Group and eligible
participants at nil consideration. The directors of
the Company are entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the
Group after the award) with respect to the vesting
of the awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme
came into effect on the Adoption Date, and shall
terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary
date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the directors of
the Company.

Details of the shares held under the Share Award
Scheme are set out below:

ARREZAINRITE D ERE
HERER EEASEITAEER
keaEwSEE SRHEER.
B BOR - B R E A R A i
fem (Bxtn E2@hat 818051 AR HE
B2 ALERSN) 2 BRAn SR Eh T
g WANZRELTHZSEEK
D8R TAKREIAEERE M
BEBBEE ARREEHAE
L BRI ALAD B 55 88 Be A0 (4] 16k 1
(BREEREFERGASE—
BB ) o B tn SR E) A 31 B
B AR WA ()R B
HEaHm T BEr B H : R(i) B

NAEFETRANALENZEH
ZBREERIE-

RIERR D SR T B35 A RS &
FEGIO0T :

Average
purchase No. of
price shares held Value
FHBEE FAEROHE BE
HK$ ‘000 HK$°000
BT T A& TFET
At 1 April 2016, RZZE—R"FOA—
31 March 2017 H-R-T—+F
and 2018 NZ_ZT—N\F=H
=+—H 1.17 3,070 3,600
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Annual Report 2017/18

184
Q



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 MBMRRRAZAB/HR
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements in current taxation in the (a) HEMBMRRRAZXEHIE
consolidated statement of financial position B
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Balance of income tax payable at ~ FAP0 B — B ET P15 R 45 64

1 April 37,354 42,093
Provision for income tax on the RAF T ERTE F R 4t

estimated taxable profits for the WET1SEL (2 MfiE7(a))

year (see Note 7(a)) 20,250 27,984
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BFFEEEETE

prior years (see Note 7(a)) (HBRRRE ) (R et 7(a)) 1,289 (2,622)
Income tax paid during the year FAENAEH (14,275) (30,101)

Balance of income tax payable at ~ ®W=A=+—BEMEH
31 March rEER 44,618 37,354

sergmpennza 185

Yy



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

26 MBEARRRAZMEH

(b) ERRBEEHEEERAE:

Fair value
adjustments
on property,
plant and
equipment, Interest
Fair value investment capitalisation
Accrued adjustments property and on
expenses on available- intangible prepayment
and for-sale assets and for
deferred financial related acquisition
income assets depreciation of properties Net
k&t RE
e MER
tWMEE EFEEZ  WBYE
Eilx 2ZARE DAERER BENNEZ
REZBA #E HEBHE MNEEXL #E
Deferred tax arising from: RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
BTHREEE ZBEERE: AEETFT ARETT ARETR AREFTT ARETR
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RF
mA—H 2,337 323 (579,617) = (576,957)
(Charged)/credited to the  (318) /Gt AGAE
consolidated statement  # & (EMiE7(a)
of profit or loss
(see Note 7(a)) (72) - 10,026 (6,676) 3,278
Charged to reserves NGRS
(see Note 10) (ZHaE10) - (1,853) (19,928) - (21,781)
At 31 March 2017 WoE—+fF
=A=+—-H 2,265 (1,530) (589,519) (6,676) (595,460)
Credited/(charged) to the 5t A /(B4 1E
consolidated statement &K (EHf77(3)
of profit or loss
(see Note 7(a)) 538 - 11,322 (13,333) (1,473)
Credited/(charged) to A/ (B GE
reserves (see Note 10) (ZH1EE10) - 10,120 (23,309) = (13,189)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=A=1+—H 2,803 8,590 (601,506) (20,009) (610,122)
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Annual Report 2017/18

N




26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 R R MY &E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

MBRARAZFABH (&)

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and () REEUBERRKRBEIANEL
liabilities recognised in the consolidated HEEEREEYHER
statement of financial position
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREF T
Deferred tax assets recognised in RERE I BIRR R ER 2 BT
the consolidated statement of MIBEE
financial position 11,393 2,265
Deferred tax liabilities recognised  WA&RA MR RER ZIRIT
in the consolidated statement of WMIBAE
financial position (621,515) (597,725)
(610,122) (595,460)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(t), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses
of RMB368,310,000 (2017: RMB239,150,000) as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
remaining unused tax losses at 31 March 2018 will
expire on or before the financial period ended 31
March 2022.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2018, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in the PRC amounted to
RMB1,709,823,000 (2017: RMB1,661,241,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB85,491,000 (2017:
RMB83,062,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits from these subsidiaries will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(d) RERZELEHEEE

(e)

BEM F2(0FTE 2 5T BUR
ANEEW RERE BARBAHRE
B A R #368,310,0007T (=
T —+4F: AR¥239,150,000
L) ZIBEEHEEE RARKE
FABGREZERRERET
A A] e 2 EV1S R R B R Bl i K
UEREiE-R_E—NFE=8
= t+—RZBRTABAHBER
BN E—FE——F=f=+—
B 1B B A sk 2 B FE O o

AERZELEBEAE
R-_E—NEFE=A=1+—8"
HAEERTRABRAMKIYLZH
BRAIZASREMNBEBZY
B =8 A AR#1,709,823,000
T(ZE—+ttF: ARK
1,661,241,0007T ) ° i & # 18
B & ARK#85,491,0007T (==
—t 4% : AR #83,062,0007T)
MR ZERE B2 DK
R 2 FiIEm T AR - REA
BARBIESIZETEMB AR
ZREBRREEEREZEW
BRRZaFTARAIBERAITER
1K F LA DK ©
HESREEERERAT
=2—t /-N\FER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

27 EXFR -HEERRE

(a)

SN eE
REBEEER ZEIMD 2B
REARGEHZHEH RS
HEEBR - AREHYEHRA
AR S ARSI 2 B BB
YT

Shares held
under share
Share Share award Capital Contributed  Exchange Accumulated
capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RERR
REE
Rx  ROEE RENRG  EAEE  BABRH  ENRG  ZHER Ehy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
27(0) 27(a)(i) 27(a)(ii) 27(a)iii) 27(d)iv)  27(a)(vii)
(i (K (Krzt (K (Krzt (HrsE
27(0) 27(d)() 20i) - 27a)i) - 27a)i) - 27() i)
Balance at 1 April 2016 RZB-REBA-AZ
oS 198,480 1,133,854 (2,922 80,552 995,255 141,901 (314,570) 2,232,550
Changes in equity EREREE:
for the year:
Total comprehensive income  ERZERHEE
for the year - - - - - 146,044 (13,075) 132,969
Equity-settled share- based ~ RIREEEURA T2
transactions (see Note 25a) %X 5 (2 H1#25(a)) - - - 4,091 - - - 4,091
Transfer between resenves — EfGRER (B H2503)
(see Notes 25(a) and 27cliv) R 27c(iv) - - - (8,352) - - 8,352 -
Balance at 31 March 2017 H=3—-t%
and 1 April 2017 =A=1-8k
“E-tEMA-A
e 198,480 1,133,854 (2.922) 76,291 995,255 287,945 (319,293) 2,369,610
Changes in equity FRBESLE:
for the year:
Total comprehensive income R 2 EK B
for the year - - - - - (230,273) (12,011)  (242,284)
Shares issued under share ~ BEERRIEEIE R
option scheme (see Note 253)  F&fn (2 Afi£25(a)) 889 2,741 = (786) - = - 2,844
Equity-settled share- based ~ EREEENRAE 2
transactions (see Note 25@) X5 (& Mi#25()) - - - 1,387 - - - 1,387
Transfer between reserves e fRERR (B HzE2502)
(see Notes 25(a) and 27c(i)  J27¢(iv) - - - (33,143) - - 33,143 -
Balance at31 March 2018 R=E-\%
=B=t-R&H 199,369 1,136,595 (2.922) 43,749 995,255 57,672 (298,161) 2,131,557
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(0

(ii)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: RMBNil).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the previous financial year, approved
during the year

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: RMBNil).

(c) Share capital

(i)

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

27 EFR -HEERE (£)

(b) KRE

(i)

(i)

ERRAIRRR LR ES
RIEBEAEBILEFABMNR
=

S EE B
+ﬁ#
|
||
|
P
_FH
m

ERRAIRRR LR ES
RIFEAE £ —RIBF
EEMKRE (RFEREH#
)

BE-_Z - NF=H
=t —HIEFETELE
M EBFEEHRARE
—E—tEF:AREKE
JT) °

(0 B=A
Issued share capital (i) EBTRAE
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ Tt
Number Number of
of shares shares
RHEE Bin 2B
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
FR AREFR TR ARETFT
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRHAZEER:
fully paid:
At 1 April REA—H 1,138,695 102,713 1,138,695 102,713
Shares issued under share BEERER 22T A
option scheme 1,100 889 = =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,139,795 103,602 1,138,695 102,713
Convertible preference ERTRARTAR
shares, issued and fully BER:
paid:
At 1 April and 31 March REA—B X
=B=1+—H 1,177,068 95,767 1,177,068 95,767
Total share capital RALE 2,316,863 199,369 2,315,763 198,480
S BEEZRERA A
—2—t /- N\FER
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

Issued share capital (continued)

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

At 31 March 2018, 3,070,000 ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the share
award scheme (2017: 3,070,000) (see Note
25(b)).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

27 EFR -HEERE (£)

(c)

B (%)

(iii) FRIR & KK faf R 2 B R 145

options at the end of the reporting period KITREBIREZIFK
2018 2017
—E-NF —ZT—+F
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
TEH TEE A A
‘000 ‘000
T TR
Share options: B R
20 October 2011 to —E——F%+ A=+
19 October 2017 HEZZ—tF
+HA+HA HK$1.96 - 34,275
28 May 2013 to —E—=%1A
27 May 2019 —+tN\BHE-_Z—A
FRAZ=Z++tH HK$1.73 40,055 49,955
30 May 2013 to —E-=FRA=+
29 May 2019 HE-Z—-NFHA
—+AH HK$1.76 1,150 1,150
27 September 2017 to —tFhA
26 September 2019 “t+EHEZE—N
FENA=—+~H HK$0.32 33,000 =
74,205 85,380
Each share option entitles the holder to BOHBRER THE AR
subscribe for one ordinary share in the BARARIZ—KRE ﬁﬂx"
Company. Further details of these share ZEBRE HE DB
options are set out in Note 25(a) to the =R B SRR M 5E25(@) °
financial statements.
Shares issued under share option (iv) RIZEREZIRITREG

scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2018,
11,000,000 options were exercised to
subscribe for 11,000,000 ordinary shares
in the Company at a consideration of
HK$3,520,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,844,000), of which HK$1,100,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB889,000)
was credited to share capital.

HE_Z—-—NF=A
=+t —BLEFERA:
11,000,00017 8 f% # 2 &
771 LA K {83,520,000
BT (HEROAR
2,844 00075> R
11,000,000/% AX 2 &) & i@
H&*ﬁﬂhtmo,ooo;‘%ﬁ
(BE R4 A R #889,000
70) B ET AR AR o

HAESEREERERD T
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(v) Transfer between reserves

The share options granted in 2011 (see Note
25(a)) lapsed in 2017 and the equity amount
previously recognised in capital reserve was
accordingly released to retained profits.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

(i)

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid
for shares held under the share award scheme.

(iii)

Capital reserve

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, capital reserve
comprises the following:

the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(t)(ii);

the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Capital reserve (continued)

—  the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(i).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Notes 2(g) and 2(m)(i).

(vii) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

27 EXR -HEERRE (&)

(d) REZMERRZ(F)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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RREFE
ARERBESRREH
AFEAHEESRMEE
MARERFAEEFER
RAZEF M 5E2(9) K2 2(m)(i)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(viii)Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in Note 2(x).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable

cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes bank and other loans), plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash at bank on
hand and short-term investments. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued

proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to
an acceptable level. In order to improve the Group's
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce

debt.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(f) Capital management

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R & MY &=
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March
2018 and 2017 is as follows:

(BrIF=BEH

(f) EXEE
R=ZT—

NER—F—

BAIAAREZ5)

27 EFX -HEERRE (&

+FE=H

=t+—H KHEBEFEEHEXR

b= AR
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKFIT
Current liabilities: MBEE :
Bank and other loans RITREMERK 792,149 790,874
Non-current liabilities: FERFHEaE
Bank loans RITER 1,541,000 1,666,000
Total debt BEE 2,333,149 2,456,874
Less: cash at bank and on hand B RTEERTFHEIES (614,681) (512,697)
Less: short-term investments B RREERE (160,761) (150,274)
Adjusted net debt 4R E R A(E IE 1,557,707 1,793,903
Adjusted capital ARSI 4,385,599 4,317,305
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio K FEEBEH EARH X 36% 42%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AR REAEAE R RHTAX

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. Exposure to credit, liquidity and
interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to equity
price risk arising from its equity investment in another
entity.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

SR Z BARERIR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to short-term investments and trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place, and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s short-term investments are wealth
management products issued by various financial
institutions in the PRC. The principal amounts
of these products are guaranteed by the issuers.
In view of the sound credit standing of these
counterparties, the management do not expect any
of them to fail to meet their obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the debtor as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtor operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 3 months from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from debtors.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period 28% (2017: 27%) and
63% (2017: 44%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest debtor and the
five largest debtors, respectively. Trade receivables
are mainly due from credit card centres owned by
state-owned financial institutions in the PRC and
tenants operating in the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets, and accordingly,
the management of the Group considers the
concentration and credit risks to be low.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 30, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 30.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from short-
term investments and trade and other receivables
are set out in Notes 19 and 21, respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings are
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB731,173,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiIEMREER AAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FBELEAR (&)

The following tables show the remaining TREBAEBR ZHFITEESRE
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting BERHERARZBTEONEE
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial S BRABRDIRIES LIRALIR
liabilities, which are based on contractual Ben=s (BEFERAELF X
undiscounted cash flows (including interest ook BIFE AR BB ER
payments computed using contractual rates or, if HREMRZNEFEZF B
floating, based on rates current at the end of the PO AR B A gt B SREX
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group ZE&FHEE-

can be required to pay.

2018
—E-N\E
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARABERRERM

More than

More than 2 years
Within 1 1yearbut  but less Carrying
yearoron less than than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
-FRx  -FHUE WMEUL =t-H

BEXE BORWE BIRIF RBBIF a8 ZREE
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Trade and other payables RBER A2 R
measured at amortised cost S RE M 1,040,630 - - - 1,040,630 1,040,630
Bank and other loans RITREMER 924,828 324,227 1,299,141 166,685 2,714,881 2,333,149

1,965,458 324,227 1,299,141 166,685 3,755,511 3,373,779

1 98 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c)

28

(BISHHEY  THIUARK L))
MBERBREERAAE (&)

(b) RBEERAR (&)

2017
L%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRERRER

More than

More than 2 years
Within 1 1 year but but less Carrying
yearoron less than than  More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
—ER%k  —FENE RENE =t-A

REXE BORME

RMB'000

RMB'000

ARET ARETT

BPRDE  BBRRF BE kAR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFL ARETL ARETL ARETR

Trade and other payables RBER A2 ERK

measured at amortised cost  F R E M B 864,916 - - - 864,916 864,916
Bank and other loans BOREMER 924,393 230,765 1,466,041 324,012 2,945211 2,456,874
1,789,309 230,765 1,466,041 324,012 3,810,127 3,321,790

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

© FEE®
AEEZFRAREIEREHE
P8 o R R IR E B A%
T2 BEEAEES HESH
SHRENERBRRAABRIER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiIEMREER AAE (&)

VALUES (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of
the reporting period.

() R=Empg (&)
(i) FIEER
TERFIAKBFEEE
R EHIR 2 MR -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
ERFZE  RMB000  ERAX RMB’000
% AREFT % AREFT
Fixed rate borrowings: [l Fl & & &
Other loans Hin &% 6.2% 235,176 5.7% 210,000
Variable rate borrowings: 7] & F| & & &:
Bank loans BITER 6.0% 2,097,973 6.1% 2,246,874
Total borrowings EEHEE 2,333,149 2,456,874
Fixed rate borrowings as EEFIREEHEE
a percentage of total ~ BFEZ AL
borrowings 10% 9%

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B TAIKARKZ7)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

28 UIBEBEERANAME(H)

() R=Emp (&)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately RMB17,049,000 (2017:
RMB17,305,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’s loss
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from available-for-sale equity securities (see
Note 18).

The Group’s investments in available-for-sale
equity securities are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The performance of the available-for-sale
equity securities are regularly monitored.

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% in the relevant stock price with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's other comprehensive income
by RMB25,194,000 (2017: RMB29,529,000).

(i) BEED T

R-_E—NE=ZA=+—
H &EfMAEHEMAE2EFHE
ERFTEZBERT
fiy &1 ) & — AR 328 hn =R
A>100E B 38 0 3k R
NEEH %R &R B
i Al 49 A R #8 17,049,000
T(ZE—tEF: AR
17,305,0007%) °

bt R 3 AT TR R R
ERREARNEEFA Z
BB ERFREZBEM
EXZHERENXME
2 HAKERBRER
MREEMNEETIRE
BN EREHHMERAZLZ
FlFEMMEE B D
ERBE_T—+tF=H
= t+t—BLEFEZHERE
BT o

(d) BRERR

ANEBEEER ] EREES
ELEZREEHEK (BHF
18) °

AEE 2 A EREE S 2R
BN EBESFRR S LT A f#t
HERSRE S RACEEHE

e

N_E—NF=A=+—8"
HETEEAREEBR LR TH
10% ' fFEFTE Efb AT BHE Z(R
BIAE2BAT ANEBZEAM
EER LM, B AR
25,194,0007c (ZZE—+t4F: A
R #29,529,0007T ) °

HESEHEERERAA
=2—t /-N\FER

201



202
Q

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Equity price risk (continued)

(e)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that none of
the Group’s available-for-sale equity securities would
be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

28 MBEBREERARE(H)

(e) DREFE (&)

(i) BAREEZLTHEE
REE (&)
ARBEER (&)

e FE=RHE:FHE
AR B 22 i A 3R
STEZARE-

Fair value measurements
as at 31 March 2018
categorised into
R=ZB-NF=ZA=+—H
RAETESESR

Fair value
at 31 March
2018 Level 1 Level 2
R-E-—NF
=H=+—H
ZARE E—R EZR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥EFr ARETT

Recurring fair value REURAEFE
measurements
Assets: &
Available-for-sale financial AJftHE & & E
assets
— Listed (see Note 18(i)) — E(EHEE183))
Short-term investments EHARE
— Unlisted —JEEm™
(see Note 19(ii)) (R HTaE19(i))

296,400 296,400 =
10,332 - 10,332
HAESEREERERD T

—E—+ /-NEFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

28 HIBEBEERNAME (&)

(e) AREFE (&)

Financial assets and liabilities measured () BARBEFEZEZHMEE
at fair value (continued) REREF (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NATEER (&)
Fair value measurements
as at 31 March 2017
categorised into
R-—ZE—+HF=F=+—8
NREFEDEAR
Fair value at
31 March
2017 Level 1 Level 2
R-T—+F
=A=+—8H
WA/N L] F— Rt 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMBFIT ARMFT ARETFTT
Recurring fair value REMENRESTE
measurements
Assets: BEE:
Available-for-sale financial RI £ HE S EE
assets
— Listed (see Note 18(i)) — LW (R HEE183)) 347,400 347,400 -
— Unlisted —3ELET
(see Note 18(ii)) (2 HaE18(ii) 20,212 — 20,212
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level FE_RRAEFEMRER
2 fair value measurements ZAH1E A Kb A SR
The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale %:?&%Lﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ’%é‘&
financial assets in Level 2 is determined REENAARETIERZ
by using the quoted price of the collective EeRMEEFBNERK
investment scheme, where these financial Bt EIM®E NBREL
assets belong to, and deducting the portion EREBEUNAAEBERD
of fair value of senior trust units, which is (ZEEELHRNELHF=E
calculated by reference to the contractual rate HEIEE-
of fixed returns.
Fair value of financial assets and (i) WHEBEAABIRZEH
liabilities carried at other than fair value BEREEBEHNAALE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values at 31 March 2018 and 2017.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)

29 COMMITMENTS 29 AIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
At 31 March 2018, the outstanding capital R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H &
commitments of the Group not provided for in the SEAREHREMBREPREE L
consolidated financial statements were as follows: R BEAREENT
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Commitments in respect of purchase HEE ¥ K= & EE
of property, plant and equipment AR E Y 2 A
and investment properties

— Contracted for —B&I4) 593,376 802,452
At 31 March 2018, capital commitments in respect R—ZE—N\F=A=+—8"F
of purchase of property, plant and equipment FAEEYR BWERREAKRK
and investment properties are for leasehold BYH 2 BRAE T RGRARE
improvements to be installed in the Group’s ErzBEmSMNERTSERR
department store and supermarket operations and KZHEERERWEBYMEZRT
the remaining payments for the acquisitions of NRER-
properties.

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KEHERIE
At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease R-_E—N\F=A=1+—H &
payments under non-cancellable operating leases BRIz R EHEERRME
are payable as follows: Nz &EHENKEERT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Within 1 year —FR 42,059 55,248
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHRERFA 122,659 194,815
After 5 years FHF 1% 102,728 213,422

267,446 463,485

seagreeneay 205

y



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE—ZF—N\F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /ndlcated) (BRIESHIEH  BHIUARKEZZ)

29 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments (continued)

The Group leases properties for the use by its
department store and supermarket operations, and
office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 20 years,
where all terms are renegotiated upon renewal.
One of the leases includes contingent rentals which
are calculated based on a fixed percentage on the
department store’s revenue.

(c) Properties leased out under operating leases

At 31 March 2018, the Group's total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

29 RIE (&
(b) ReHEEEE (&)

(c)

AEERECEHERESTY
EHEAERSRBAMSER
EMRER - ZEHE—RINE
REPZE-+%F MABRRA

REREEHNEE - HP—1BH
ERRREAERSRaZEE
B EcRAEE -

RECERELEZME
RZZE—N\F=R=+—H &
SERETIBHE LERER
A& 2 KR B FOR AL
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Within 1 year —F RN
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA
After 5 years hF1&

The Group leases out its shopping mall and parts
of its department stores under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
15 years, where all terms are renegotiated upon
renewal. Certain of the leases include contingent
rentals which are calculated based on a fixed
percentage on the tenants’ revenue.
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N

30,957 33,072
56,396 58,723
15,334 23,372
102,687 115,167

AEERBLEHENHAERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
issued the following guarantees:

(a)

(b)

(@)

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest-bearing bank loan drawn by
an independent third party in 2005. The loan will
mature in July 2018. In September 2010, Ginwa
Investments Holding Group Limited (“Ginwa
Investments”) provided a counter-guarantee
to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on any losses
incurred arising from the above guarantee. As of
31 March 2018, the outstanding loan balance is
RMB68,200,000 (2017: RMB68,200,000).

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of a payable for acquisition of a property
by Ginwa Investments in August 2005. Ginwa
Investments has defaulted repayment of the above
payable. As of 31 March 2018, the outstanding
balance of the payable is RMB9,500,000 (2017:
RMB9,500,000).

A guarantee provided by the Group in respect of
an entrusted loan drawn by Huade Investment in
February 2015, where the guarantee is in addition
to the payments made by the Group for its intended
acquisition of commercial properties as mentioned
in Note 17. The loan will mature in July 2019.
Land and buildings held by one of the Group's
subsidiaries with book value of RMB1,096,616,000
at 31 March 2018 were pledged for the above
entrusted loan in the amount of RMB600,000,000.
In February 2015 and July 2016, the Group has
obtained counter-guarantees from (i) the project
company developing the above commercial
properties; and (ii) the intermediate holding
company of Huade Investment on the pledge of
its 70% equity interests in the immediate holding
company of Huade Investment.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company do not consider it is probable that a claim
will be made against the Group under any of the above
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group at the
end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued
is the outstanding amount of the bank loans and liability
of RMB677,700,000 plus accrued interest.

(BrIF=BEH

BAIAAREZ5)

30 HAEE
RIMEF NREED B U TE

& :

(a)

SIEEER BB LE=F7
TETRFREZEABRITE
HMRE 2 B R -ZEEE H i
—E-NFLAEH -R_T—
%Enﬂ BB EIE Hﬁs‘%lﬁ
RAR ([&EFE]EMETE
ﬁi@h% TEER - ATRE R
:Uﬂ%ﬁﬁ?iﬂ%ﬂ%% E
—E-NF=ZA=+—8"
hiﬂaﬁézé KRB AR
68,200,000 (ZZE—+t4F: A
R #68,200,0007T ) °

Fﬂ>

7

SIEEERSTERER _ZZ
AFENAKE—BEYEZER
FRIEMEH Z R /i\mxé“a
T/_TE}ELLJEH RIE - B =
T-NF=ZA=+—H" Hﬁi
EEZEMRESRBEAARE
9,500,0007T (=& —+tF: AR
#9,500,0007T ) °

AEBREERER=_ZE—H
fi_ﬁﬁﬁﬂzgﬁﬁiAkﬁﬁf
R ZER TR R 1767 2t
ZIS%%MZH%F*%%%%ZH*
INZER- ZEERBER T
—NFLAEH- EEZIK%I
B ARIBER-ZT—\F
ZA=+t—HNEEFEAA
R #1,096,616,0007T &) + b
MEFR LB AAREK
600,000,000t By & =t & K K
H-RA—_ZE—FAF_AR_-F
—tF LA TXEEEHOERE
LM EYEZIEE AR K(ii)
EEFRE ZHEZEER AR
BREZCEEERARZ70%
AR Ve L R ERG RPELR ©

RBERR ARBEFTA/BE A
A RE R BEM B R AN EE

RORE - ARERHERRZE %
ﬁjf‘f%IETZ R BEARAEEL

R1T

AN EEAREE77,700,000

E?JDJE.:H"JE' °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with equity shareholders
and their affiliates, and a director of the

(BIEBHEHEH TAIUARKZE)
31 ERBEAETRS

Bz TR IR B AR P BR 2 45
ERON REBIVETTA TERBEEA
ITRXH-

(a) EARNARRRKEBBEAL
UR—-—BESETZXRS

Company
2018 2017
—E-N\EF 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARKFT
Purchase of property, plant and BEWX WERKE
equipment - 1,041
Rental and management and HeEWARERRITHRBEE
administrative service fee income W A = 6,600
Operating lease expenses ETRERY - 46
Net decrease in advances granted 1% T B85 A+ 2 A FUR D F58
to related parties (see Note (i) (K1) 47,604 703
Guarantees provided by a director RBEFRARR—REEAH
of the Company for the Group’s REE ZIRITERREZ
bank loans at the end of the ER
reporting year 505,176 560,000

Further details on the guarantees the Group
provided for related parties are set out in Note 30.

Note:

(i)  The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing (i) Z
and have no fixed terms of repayment. ER

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

(c)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

31

(BISHHEY  THIUARK L))
EXBEALRS (&)

(b) TEEBAEHM
TEEBEABZHM (BEME
STMBEC N TARRERTZHK
BEMEAREDN TET&
SFHMEE ZHREB)MT

2018 2017
—®-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FRT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥ & s2Bi Rk HE M E W& T

kind
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET 2|30
Share-based payments LSRN

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

None of the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 31(a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

17,655 23,669
229 317

- 460
17,884 24,446

FMeBEA AEINA]A
( RFif5E6(D)) ©

(0 LHRURBEABERSZE
Rt
R R @)FT R E 2 B A
T B m R R EE4
EFRAT 2 HES B ERE
25
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

32 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

(BRIESFEE BRIUAREZS)

32 AEIEEBBMRRER

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it &£ AR¥FT ARBF T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment NN 1,077 4,774
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR Z R 2,302,194 2,552,552
2,303,271 2,557,326
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H A & WK 29,759 32,970
Cash at bank and on hand IRITEGFNFERS 114 131
29,873 33,101
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables E b BT 5K 201,587 220,817
201,587 220,817
Net current liabilities REEEFEHE (171,714) (187,716)
NET ASSETS EEZFH 2,131,557 2,369,610
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAK f#E 27
Share capital A% ZX 199,369 198,480
Reserves ER 1,932,188 2,171,130
TOTAL EQUITY EREmE 2,131,557 2,369,610
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEFEeR _ZT—N\EA-_THHILE

directors on 27 June 2018.

Kam Hou Yin, John
SZB
Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to the board resolution of the Company
dated 20 April 2018, Ginwa Bell Tower, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the
PRC, proposed to issue three-year private placement
exchangeable bonds in the principal amount of up to
RMB200,000,000 (the “Exchangeable Bonds”). The
Exchangeable Bonds are exchangeable at the option of
the bondholders for Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares currently
held by Ginwa Bell Tower (see Note 18(i)).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company at 31
March 2018 to be Maritime Century Limited and Ginwa
Investments, respectively. Neither of these companies
produces financial statements available for public use.

33

34

(BISHHEY  THIUARK L))
WERBRHFAREE

BEARARBHA-ZZ—N\FWMA
ZTTHEMNESERER AQAR
FREMAIMIEZENBAR S
TEEESRTTASEEZARE
200,000,0007T By = F BA 89 FL 5 7] 32
BES ((IRBEHF]) AIXHBRE
S HEFFEAEEIRGEE
BEAFAENSELEAR (R
18(i) ) °

EERBREZERAF

RRAREERR ARARRZE—N\
FZA=+—HAZEERZEERR
A2 Bl &Maritime Century Limited &2
THRE - ZERAWEFHAIHRD
BERAZHB®RE -

HESEHEERERAA
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3E5H 58 T AIUANREZ %))

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 35 EAMEMARBE=ZE—N

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND F=Z=A=+—BHLEFEERZ
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET A EARRECEERE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HETZZEWBEHREAH B5g
the HKICPA has issued a number of new standards and TR AGERBZENRAREBEE-S
amendments to standards which are not yet effective for —\EF=ZA=+—HLEFEAKAMN
the year ended 31 March 2018 and which have not been NI 5% 55 B S SRR ER AR B 3 5T 22 81| %
adopted in these financial statements. These include the HRAZEFT - EBE TR EREASE
following which may be relevant to the Group. EMEEE -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
KLU Rz Z B % 1Y
Bt HBEEXN
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BEMBHRELERNFESR [£HTA] —E-N\¥—H—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BANBREEABISR [ KEELELZWA S —T-NF—-HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: 1 January 2018
Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions
EEMBRELERE 25 (BRI R) ROV - RENAXRZ2 5B RAE] —T-NFE—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: 1 January 2018
Transfers of investment property
BB ERNFAR BRI [REYFE BEREYE] —E-N\F—HA—H
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
5 (BREMBHRERBEEER)F22% - HMERXFZRANKE] —_T-NFE—-HA—H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BBV BHMELERIE 165 - [HE] —E-hF—H—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
58 (BRMBHRERBEEE®)F23%R : [MEHEERNTHEET] —T-hF—HA—H

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017/18
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

The Group is in process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the
actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report
for the six months ended 30 September 2018. The Group
may also change its accounting policy elections, including
the transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, calculation of impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other
hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive
changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts
of the new requirements on the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

35

(BIFFEHEH BRIAAREZS)

CHEAEHAREE-Z—N
FZA=1T-BLEFEEN
é%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ&%%ZiﬁE%
= (#&)

RE B IEHERFE % FIERT A K £
KEBRERERMEEREROF
Zo-25 R/ AEEERBRFER
B &R 2> 77 [ A] BE ¥ AR A I IS R X
EARE -FRRHREZE T
BRI XAwm -BEEEMBEREE
A 5295 I & 78 B 75 i & 2R Rl 36 155%
ZAHEE R - BRIES B XK
ZAHATIIRBARE B AT 2 Al 5 E
fE B RRARBEENZERE
ZrEAMTR BASEARENE
BE_T-N\FhLA=THILXEA
Z R BARA 75 S 5 B R FE R AR B ZE B AT
BHEZZE NERETAIREEE R
SRIBRER (BRBRERE) HE
R B 3RE &R E MR

ERNKBREERNFESE /T
=N
BEAMBHRELERFEIRBFEMRE
BEERFER [T A R
FEE| BETEHEEMTASERE
H IR B A2 2E - B/ B B 75 R 4 £ BI 59
R eMEENSEATEREME
ERENERE RS IELFAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 35
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") as follows:

The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as
FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised
in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The
only exception is if the equity security is not
held for trading and the entity irrevocably
elects to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI
then only dividend income on that security
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains,
losses and impairments on that security will

be recognised in other comprehensive income

without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption

of HKFRS 9.
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

BEREMBRELENSSR[€MT
8l (&)
DERE(E)

(a) Classification and measurement (continued) (a)

With respect to the Group’s financial assets
currently classified as “available-for-sale”, these
are investments in equity securities which the
Group may classify as either FVTPL or irrevocably
elect to designate as FVTOCI (without recycling)
on transition of HKFRS 9. The Group has not yet
decided whether it will irrevocably designate these
investments as FVTOCI or classify them as FVTPL.
Either classification would give rise to a change
in accounting policy as the current accounting
policy for available-for-sale equity investments is to
recognise fair value changes in other comprehensive
income until disposal or impairment, when gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss in accordance
with the Group’s policies set out in Notes 2(g) and
2(m). This change in policy will have no impact on
the Group’s net assets and total comprehensive
income but will impact on reported performance
amounts such as profit and earnings per share.

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9
requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes
of that financial liability’s own credit risk to be
recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently
does not have any financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement may
not have any impact on the Group on adoption of
HKFRS 9.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary
for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure expected credit losses as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and
the facts and circumstances. This new impairment
model may result in an earlier recognition of credit
losses on the Group’s trade receivables and other
financial assets. However, a more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is
currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15
on its financial statements. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has identified the following areas
which are likely to be affected:

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILARKZ3)
35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 35 EEMEHMRREBEZ=-F—N
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND F=ZA=1+—HLEELEX
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ZHETEARZREZBESY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 &7
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)
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(a) WA AR
ZS%E’ULIAU\E'E%?&EAZ%T&E?E’&W

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The group’s revenue recognition policies are

disclosed in Note 2(w). Currently, revenue from F2(w) EHEEm&IEHES
the sale of goods and provision of services is BEESNKAR R — “"%‘JEFﬁ
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of BRENEREEREERERP
ownership have passed to the customers and when N BRTE B IR AT HERR

the services have been rendered, respectively.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the BIER BB 153 & 281 25 1555
customer obtains control of the promised good ERPNBEAF I HEEm
or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 S AR 745 B0 12 Il P R FE SR ©
situations in which control of the promised good or 78 B 15 R & Y B 551558 B 3% Bl
service is regarded as being transferred over time: PR &6 H 75 on ok AR 75 A 2 1) 4B 4R
REERHAELEEBN=ERE

S

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives )y BEEBEANR BFPRE
and consumes the benefits provided by the EREEBEEERBEAE
entity’s performance, as the entity performs; e &

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or (i) BEEENELYEIESNER
enhances an asset (for example work in —EREFEREGIEN
progress) that the customer controls as the BE (WMERIRE)
asset is created or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create (i) EEENBAOTAEZSER
an asset with an alternative use to the entity EXGEEEMBERAR
and the entity has an enforceable right to WEE UNREEAES
payment for performance completed to date. ESFEMRMBEORSEN

%7\0

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do MENERREEETHITTE

not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale
of that good or service at a single point in time,
being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(b) Significant financing component

(c)

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in advance
or in arrears. Currently, the Group would only
apply such a policy when payments are significantly
deferred, which is currently not common in the
Group's arrangements with its customers. Advance
payments are also not common in the Group’s
arrangement with its customers. Therefore, the
Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will
not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue.

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return
the products, the Group estimates the level of
returns and makes an adjustment against revenue
and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return. However, the new requirement
to recognise separately a return asset for the
products expected to be returned will impact the
presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group currently adjusts
the carrying amounts of inventory for the expected
returns, instead of recognising a separate asset.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z=—F—N\F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(I), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into leases as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of
the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future lease
payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset
and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or
less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ—=—F—N\F=H=+—HILFZE
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 35 EAMEMARBE=ZE—N

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and
to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of the
lease. As disclosed in Note 29(b), at 31 March 2018 the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amount to RMB267,446,000
for properties, the majority of which is payable between
1 and 5 years after the reporting date or in more than 5
years. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16
and the effects of discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16
before its effective date of 1 January 2019. However,
early adoption of HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is
no earlier than the adoption of HKFRS 15. It is therefore
unlikely that HKFRS 16 will be adopted before the
effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1 January 2018.
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